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DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
&: ADMlNISTRATNE SERVICES

JACK VAVRA, Director

NEDRASKA'S BILL HARRIS, MAYOR

10,1989

The Citizens Of City Of Lincoln:

Financial Report of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska
August ,1988 is submitted. Responsibility for both

data, and the completeness fairness of the presentation,
rests with To the best of our knowledge and

belief, enclosed is accurate in all material respects and reported in a manner
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various
funds and groups of the governments. disclosures necessary to enable

to an understanding of the governments' financial activities including
of the Accounting Standards Board

the fiscal year
the of

is presented in four sections:
Audit

of Transmittal, a
Chart, and a Reproduction

in Financial Reporting for the

includes an Report, Purpose Financial
Statements (Including Notes to the Financial Statements), Combining and Individual
Fund Account Group Statements and narrative explanations
which can in understanding and individual fund and account
group

vii



Statistical tables present several periods of time or contain data
from sources other the ...........""v ..... , Statistical tables differ from financial
statements because they cover more than 2 fiscal years and may present non-
accounting data. Statistical r'n'l'ln,..y social and economic data, financial trends,
and the fiscal capacity of

The Single Audit Report Section contains a combined Auditor's Report on Compliance
at the General Purpose Financial Statement Level and the Federal Financial
Assistance Program a Findings and Questioned Costs, and a
Combined Auditors' on Internal Accounting Administrative Controls the
General Fi and Federal Financial Assistance
Program Level.

This report includes all component units, functions, programs, and activities in which
the City exercises oversight authority. City oversight authority is oetermined on the
basis of budget adoption, fu and selection governing authority. Services are
provided to residents in many including public safety (police - fire), highways
and streets, health, planning zoning, parks, recreation, urban development, mass
transportation, electric utility, water utility, sanitary sewer utility, hospital, golf courses,
auditorium, parking facilities, general administrative services. The City Council
exercises budgetary and/or setting authority over the City Library, Lincoln
System (LES), Lincoln Hospital (LGH), and Lincoln Transportation System
(LTS), all of which are included in this report. The Lincoln Water System, Lincoln
Sanitary Sewer System, parking lots, parking facilities, golf courses and Pershing
Municipal Auditorium are all part of administrative departments under the direction of
the Mayor are included in this report. The following entities are included in
this report the City not oversight authority:

Housing Authority of the
Lincoln Public Schools
Lincoln Airport Authority
Lincoln Association

Separate audited financial are available from these organizations.

Population growth is one indicators of a community's economic well-being.
As such an indicator, the metropolitan population growth during the
past several years reflects a community that is economically viable and is strongly
positioned to meet future

The
sustained
population

continues to demonstrate a pattern of
figures, the Lincoln metropolitan area

1988, adding over 2,000 people to the

viii



Permits for
with an

Ilion. from the
Lincoln's construction market should

U..;;I".;;lllvILQU in providing the citizens
1988-89.

C"\/I:~TOlrn ..iI...... ,....... was initiated
project will
Safety

I"'-:Jnlln~ in the City



Grant and a $12,000,000
if .... ,........"" .... "''''''Il''\'I' ..", ....'I't'''

May 9, 1

to use on
by

Li Water
of $117,304,000 over
dollars, approxi mately .u'""l'\..J.u ....'u

revenue bonds with the
major projects
collector lines, and

treatment

mains.

...... .... ""1I~~',,;.. ~'1" ...\I..'10 and
there are numerous

In developing evaluating the City's ng system, consideration is given to
the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are
designed to provide reaso ,but not absolute, assurance reg ng the
safeguardi of assets unauthorized use or and
reliability financial ng fi ntaini
accountability for assets.

Several major internal
all City departments.
departmental
approved by the
between the
Ordinance
Di,.."",.,·..........
purpose. City has a
disposition of fixed
controls within the

control, but serves to indicate that
assurance of

x



l;;Jo,.;:)'OU until additional
as reservations

"""' ..... VL .... Funds, budgets for
Funds are budgeted

completion of the
annually.

risks and
Risk

the City. Since
loss experiences.

Percent
Increase Percent Of

Increase

10.7'%
4.0
7.1

(1

64.9%
22.1

2.2
1.4
0.2
0.8
4.9

UC...·lrYI'?e> and Fees
Reimbursement for Services
Court Fees
Recreational u"",,' ...........? ...

Other

ns e r 1

xi



31, 1988, current
0.02% from

two

were 94.21 %

by purpose for

General Fund
Library
Sadal Security

Fire Pension

1987-88

.0141

.0141

.0584
1

1985-86

.2445

.0528

.0198

.0221

.0649

.4041

the basis of accounting totaled
7.8% over 1986-87. This decrease is due

Bonds during Fiscal
Debt Service Fund.

functions of the City over

Increase Percent Of
Increase

(Decrease)

8.5%
5.9
9.7
2.7

16.6
3.2

(57.4)

$ 882,366
1,176,609

531,581
11

9.5
12.8

9.8
5.7

Public
Streets and ~1"'U"'nAl~'''t:!'

- Recreation

Garage, which opened in
Square Parking Garage, which

debt for both facilities is covered under the
by both facilities and the on-street parking

debt service of both series of bonds. Comparative data for the
are presented in the following

xii



405,500

It is controlled
general revenue.
Council in regard
outstanding bonded

9 the Financial

Net Net Bonded

133.94

117.46
16.48

21 ,182
3,059,188

8
1,070,812

.;;an,OI"'.:l1 Bonds
Tax Allocation Bonds

Total Bonds
Tax

Allocation

tjDe~clal Assessment Bonds

xiii



In addition
liabi lity for
Statements presents more

debt, the City
9 the

position of

There were no new bonds I ....... ' .......... during the year ended August 31, 1988.

The City's General Obligation
ratings. These ratings are as follows:

Bonds continue have

Moody's
Investors Service

General Obligation Bonds
Water and Sewer Revenue
Electric Revenue:

Electric Power Supply
Electric Distribution Facility

Commercial Paper Notes
Lincoln General Hospital (Ser. 1

Aa

A1

A
A1+

The various i contain significant limitations and restrictions on annual
debt service requirements, maintenance, of monies through various
accounts, minimum amounts to be maintained in various bond reserve funds, and
minimum revenue bond coverages. The City is in compliance with all significant
limitations and restrictions.

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in interest-bearing depo~its or U.S.
government securities. Over the year, 98.93°/0 of available funds were invested in
interest-bearing deposits or government securities. Note 4 the Combined Financial
Statements discloses the City's investment manner which these
investments are held. The yield on was °/0 and the amount
of interest earned was $1

Proceeds of general obligation bond issues are accounted for in Capital Projects
funds until improvement projects are completed. Some capital improvement projects
are accounted for in general fixed account group upon completion. Since
the City does capitalize infrastructure items, such items are included in the
general fixed asset account group. Items which are purchased or constructed with
Capital Projects fu , upon completion or pu , me part of the
operation of an Internal fund or Enterprise fund, are capitalized as contributed
capital in those funds.

in performance of
the Enterprise and

are fixed assets
exclude the

, 1

The fixed assets
general governmental fu
Internal Service

xiv



over 12 a over

$8,439
1,930,055

2

in operating revenue
are in

1
1,528,416
3,586,562
1,112,027

3.23

Reporting
for its

August 31, 1

unit
financial report,

must satisfy both

xv



A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our
current report continues to conform to rtificate of Achievement program
requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility.

Acknowledgements
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.
0Re.speCtfUIlY submitted,

/kP~~------
/' /

/// Jack Vavra
l./ Oi rector
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For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers

Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial

reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting

and financial reporting.
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Certified Public Accountants

PHi MIU'wlck Mltn , Ce.
1600 FlraTler Bank Building
Lincoln, NE 68508

CouncilHonorable Mayor and
of the City of Lincoln, fi'£:U'Ir~:H::"1.r

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City Lincoln,
Nebraska, as and for the , 1988, as listed in the
accompanying Table These general purpose financial statements are the
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is an opinion
on these general purpose financial statements on our audit. not audit
the financial statements of is included the enterprise
fund type, which statements reflect total assets constituting 7% and total revenues
constituting 23%01 the related totals of the enterprise fund type. Those statements
were audited by other auditors has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates for Lincoln General Hospital, is
based solely on the

We conducted our audit in accordance generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material
misstatement. auditincludes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting nciples used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis our opinion.

the report other auditors ,the general
present fairly, all material respects,

of , Nebraska, at August 31, 1988, and the
cash flows of its proprietary and similar trust fund types

tr'r'\I''''ITr\.''rnl'!I'\1 with generally accepted accounting principles.

its accounting
Accounting

2



Standards Board Statement No.6, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Special
Assessments".

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund statements
and schedules listed in the accompanying Table of Contents are presented for the
purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose
financial statements of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

January 27, 1989
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Exhibit 1

CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

AUGUST 31, 1988
With Comparative Totals For August 31, 1987

Governmental Fund Types Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type Account Groups Totals
General (Memorandum Only)

Special Debt Capital Enterprise Internal Trust And General Long-Term
General Revenue Service Projects (Note 1) ~~ Agency Fixed Assets Liability 1988 1987-

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

$ 5,312,282 3,905,217 2,033,772 465,870 5,686,029 3,8~i9,012 9,108,604 30,350,786 32,098,420
32,518 69,037 4,037 105,592 1,231,159

4) 9,496,038 9,707,139 15,673,895 66,453,350 1,968.065 56,005,610 159,304,097 152,946,015
3,050,963 1,172,111 9,952,564 622,997 24,349,8~11 347,575 1,389,950 40,885,991 39,437,983
1,949,521 556,707 566,287 1,133,927 149,452 978,817 249,563 5,584,274 7,158,723

6) 1,857,904 1,187,837 34,780 24,444 161,871 241,210 6,099 3,514,145 3,906,853
175,163 20,280 3,609,978 292,000 4,097,421 4,219,275

3,783,328 3,783,328 4,699,773
161,300 1,104,396 1,265,696 1,072,689

272,369
Contractor 905,635 905,635 744,440
Unamortized Expense 319,2"10 319,210 347,963
Deferred Charges And Other Assets 15) 20,421,044 20,421,044 19,419,164
Advance For Nuclear 4,017,284 4,017,284 5,173,555
Restricted

Cash 4) 4,607,285 4,607,285 3,096,029
~ Hand And In Other Accounts 932 932 2,684

Investments At Cost Or Amortized 52,110,742 52,110,742 50,804,919
Accrued Intefest Receivable (Note 5) 452,9"13 452,913 414,669
Due From Othef Funds (Note 8,726 8,726 3,800

Plant, And Equipment

467,309,478 5,118,414 56,858,317 529,286,209 519,202,595
90,309 90,309 121,123

Insurance Contract 15) 1,757,803 1,757,803 1,860,903
Amount Available In Service Funds 12,268,405 12,268,405 3,164,388
Amount To Be Provided For Retirement

Of General long-Term liabilities 33,615,742 33,615,742 29,251,519
Total Assets And Other Debits $ 12,507,133 16,461,017 22,294,542 17,921,133 654,614,886 12,785,093 69,427,301 56,858,317 45,884,147 908,753,569 880,651,010

LIABILITIES

Warrants Payable 3,640,505 3,640,505 2,797,364
Vouchers Payable 2,959 71,179 118 2,522 76,778 963,293
Contracts Payable 1,868,981 562,000 2,430,981 1,365,968
Accounts Payable 302,165 156,907 40,665 7,694,285 182,262 4,960 8,381,244 10,489,668
Accrued Liabilities 995,141 298,312 7,940,880 160,867 307,018 9,702,218 8,663,339
Interest Payable On Capital Leases
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,408,722 437,372 732,057 389,351 2,560 984,147 3,954,209 3,788,695

From Restricted Assets:
Contracts 1,042,646 1,042,646 142,213

Accrued Interest 6,669,562 6,669,562 5,963,058
Fuel Credit Obligation Notes (Note 9) 590,000 590,000 755,000
Revenue Bonds (Note 9) 7,410,000 7,410,000 5,290,000

Accreted Interest On Capital Appreciation Bonds 1,274,756 1,274,756
Due To Othef Governments 2,917 30 1,123,207 1,126,154 770,372
Due To Contractor 969,825 969,825 816,338

(Continued)



(Exhibit 1, Continued)

Fiduciary

Governmental Fund Types Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type Account Groups Totals
General (Memorandum Only)

Special Debt Capital Enterprise Internal Trust And General Long-Term
General Revenue ~rvice Projects (Note 1] Service Agen<:}' Fixed Assets Liability 1988 1987

(liABilITIES, Continued)

Due To Plan Members (Note 15) 946,132 1,810,919 2,757,051 2,541,463
Due To Other Funds (Note 17) 720,374 946,715 286,744 19,433 34,514 3,585,220 5,593,000 7,162,523
Notes Payable (Note 8) 5,000,000
Unearned Advances 804 804 115,409
Deferred Revenues 1,052,902 289,321 7,21B2,557 19,425 78,624 8,722,829 9,057,114
Claims (Note 20) 2,974,420 2,974,420 809,648
Special Assessments Debt With Governmental

Commitment 15,540,000 15,540,000 17,435,000
General Obligation Bonds Payable (Note 9) 28,635,000 28,635,000 30,340,000
Revenue Bonds And Notes (Notes 9 And 12) 347,506,723 347,506,723 357,786,723
Fuel Credit Obligation Notes (Note 9) 1,365,000 1,365,000 1,955,000
Bond Principal Payable 15,000 15,000 15,000
Bond Interest Payable :20,157 20,157 19,022
Deferred Credits And Other 144,163 144,163 378,379
Obligations Under Capital Leases (Note 9) 159,733 296,8.'33 456,566 812,125
Obligations Under land Contracts (Note 9) 725,000 725,000 1,087,500
Amounts Held Under State lease Agreement (Note 12) 1,255,249 1,255,249 1,286,044
Other 2,037,187 2,037,187 1,533,082

Total Liabilities 4,485,180 2,200,640 7,3'17,714 2,215,815 386,094,557 4,038,365 12,780,609 45,884,147 465,017,027 479,139,340
U1

FUND EQUITY

Contributed Capital 63,549,299 1,568,947 65,118,246 64,038,321
Investment In General Fixed Assets 56,858,317 56,858,317 55,284,042
Retained Earnings:

Reserved For:
Debt Service 14,802,195 14,802,195 10,452,940
Improvements 5,080,468 5,080,468 6,247,471
Restricted Funds 17,341,522 17,341,522 15,779,892

Unreserved:
Undesignated 145,885,645 7,177,781 153,063,626 139,368,050

Fund Balances:
Reserved For:

Encumbrances 630,195 3,896,235 1,031,443 21,731 5,579,604 3,796,520
Improvements 3,209,000 3,209,000 3,263,152
Inventories 175,163 20,280 195,443 200,423
Debt Service 12,268,405 12,268,405 3,164,388
Restricted Funds 148,000 148,000 146,849
Employee Retirement 55,989,665 55,989,665 50,811,450

Unreserved:
Designated For Supsequent Years' Expenditures 4,806,485 2,115,570 441,230 7,363,285 11,785,404
Undesignated 2,410,110 8,228,292 2,708,423 14,232,645 18,504,000 635,296 46,718,766 37,172,768

Total Retained Earnings/Fund Balances 8,021,953 14,260,377 14,97'6,828 15,705,318 204,971,030 7,177,781 56,646,692 321,759,979 282,189,307
Total Fund Equity 8,021,953 14,260,377 14,97'6,828 15,705,318 268,520,329 8,746,728 56,646,692 56,858,317 443,736.542 401,511,670

Committments And Contingent Liabilities
(Notes 9, 13, and 14)

Total Liabilities And Fund Equity $ 12,507,133 16,461,017 22,294,542 17,921,133 654,614,886 12,785,093 69.427,301 56,858,317 45,884,147 908,753,569 880,651,010

See Accompanying Notes To Combined Financial Sb:tements



Exhibit 2
CllY OF LINCOLN, NE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND lYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988
With COJ11)arative Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1987

Governmental Fund Types
Fiduciary

Fund Type Totals
(Memorandum Only)

General
Special

Revenue
Debt

Service
Capital
Projects

Expendable
Trust 1988 1987

2.335,284
444,470

1,090,047

5,580,679
1,476

1,916,553932,944

3,422,571
13,870,566

609,331
39.802

50,327,887 47,556.172
1,662 16,803,536 15,285,396

1,603,158 1,496,422
1,048,138 1,270,069

116,859 119,721
590,809 526,598

35,340 4,713,800 5,323,781
341,130 341,130 351,133

787,978 1,843,250 1,247,371 4,700 3,883.299 3.271~

45,711,440 20,718,464 7,498.708 5.117,172 382,832 79,428,616 75,200,442

$ 38,989,353
2,485,362

993,827
1.008,336

116,859
590,809
738,916

Revenues:
Taxes & Special Assessments (Note 2)
Intergovernmental
Permits And Fees
Reimbursement For Services
Court Fees
Recreation
Interest
Donations And Gifts
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

0'

General Government
Public Safety
Streets And Highways
Culture- Recreation
Economic Opportunity
Health And Welfare

Debt Service:
Retirement

Fiscal Charges
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

9,809,599 1,417,963 11,227,562 10,511,274
20.931,646 286.016 21,217,662 20.041,053

3.683.780 2,303.732 5,987.512 5,455,931
5,163,230 2,891,421 124,932 8,179,583 8,147,396

6,201,422 102,381 6,303,803 5,367,630
3,616,964 3,616,964 3,504,832

3,600,000 3,600,000 15,475,000
3,209,178 3,209,178 3,720,445

16,842,241 16,842,241 14,606,760
39,588,255 16,717,518 6,809,178 16,842,241 227,313 80,184,505 86,830,321

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over Expenditures 6,123,185 4,000,946 689,530 (11,725,069) 155,519 (755,889) (11,629,879)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
Bond Anticipation Note Proceeds
General Obligation Bond Proceeds
Capital Lease Proceeds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

3,773,478
(8,414,997) (8,038,732)

(8,414'~n (4,265,254)

11,269,182
(56,759)

11,212,423

15,042,660 11,019,923
(16,510,488) (13,485,287)

71,000
11,802,000

60,085
{1,467,828} 9,467,721

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources Over
Expenditures And Other Financing Uses (2,291,812) (264,308) 689,530 (512,646) 155,519 (2,223,717) (2,162,158)

Fund Balances
As Previousiy

Of Year

10,313,765 14,444,343 14,276,412 16,309,192 501,508 55,845,220 38,5n.378

Prior Period Adjustment (Note 8) 19,430,000

Of Year

,10,313,765 14,444,343 14,276,412 16,309.192 501,508 55,845,220 58,007,378

Residual
Residual

Transfers In
Translers Out

80,342 10,886 91 .228 40,140
(91,228) (91,228) (40,140)

Fund Balances End Of Year (Notes 3 16) $ 8,021,953 14,260,377 14,976,828 15,705,318 657,027 53,621,503 55,845,220

See Accompanying Notes To Cormined Financial Statements



CITY OF UNCOlN, NE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL -- GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE,
AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

Exhibit 3

General Fund Special RevenueFu~__ Debt Service Funds Totals (Memorandum Only)
Variance Varian<;e Variance Varian<:e
Favorable Favorable Favorable Favorable

--~ Actual (UnfavorableL Budgel Actual (Unfavora~~~~l:l&_ J1l.!lfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Taxes $ 36,062,350 38,917,628 2,855,27SI 3,085,670 3,379,091 293,421 3,872,012 3,837,382 (34,630) 43,020,032 46,134,101 3,114,069

Intergovernmental 2,319,000 2,483,862 164,862! 12,404,409 13,830,214 1,425,iB05 1,476 1,476 14,723,409 16,315,552 1,592,143

Permits And Fees 727,000 994,802 267,802! 534,277 609,039 74,762 1,261,277 1,603,841 342,564

Reimbursements For Servi<:es 1,209,348 880,211 (329,137) 1,209,348 880,211 (329,137)

Court Fees 124,000 117,414 (6,586) 124,000 117,414 (6,586)

Recreation Re<:eipls 580,000 592,917 12,917 580,000 592,917 12,917
Interest 840,000 778,151 (61,849) 501,560 869,017 367,457 576,664 702,026 125,362 1,918,224 2,349,194 430,970
Special Assessments 2,477,178 2,477,178 2,477,178 2,477,178
Special Assessments Interest 1,088,095 1,088,095 1,088,095 1,088,095
Miscellaneous 697,358 764,563 67,205 1,372,947 1,794,720 421,'773 2,070,305 2,559,283 488,978

Total Revenues 42,559,056 45,529,548 2,970,492 17,898,863 20,482,081 _2,583,:218 8,Ol~~49 _13,106,15r 92,208 68,471,868 74,117,786 5,645,918

-....J Expenditures:
General Government 10,321,118 10,001,691 319,427 1,851,429 1,320,008 531,421 12,172,547 11,321,699 850,848
Public Safety 21,028,604 20,767,234 261,370 279,942 265,483 14,459 21,308,546 21,032,717 275,829
Streets And Highways 3,863,002 3,457,101 405,901 2,009,666 2,112,100 (102,434) 5,872,668 5,569,201 303,467
Culture-Recrealion 5,201,024 5,101,822 99,202 2,889,356 2,889,488 ('132) 8,090,380 7,991,310 99,070
Economic Opportunity 6,569,443 6,252,605 316,1338 6,569,443 6,252,605 316,838
Health And Welfare 3,591,320 3,589,526 1,l94 3,591,320 3,589,526 1,794
Sanitation 3,331 1,056 2,:~75 3,331 1,056 2,275
Special Assessments 86,790 86,790 86,790 86,790
Debt Servi<:e 6,975,462 6,808,041 167,421 6,975,462 6,808,041 167,421

Total Expenditures 40,413,748 39,327,848 1,085,900 1L~81,277 16,517,056 764,:!21 6,975,462 6,808,04_1_ 161>-121 64,670,487 62,652,945 2,017,542

Ex<:ess (Deficiency) 01 Revenues
Over Expenditures 2,145,308 6,201,700 4,056,392 617,586 3,965,025 3,347,439 1,038,487 1,298,11L__ 259,~29 3,801,381 11,464,841 7,663,460

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In 3,714,329 3,773,478 59,1149 3,714,329 3,773,478 59,149
Operating Transfers Out (9,524,628) (8,458,950) 1,065,678 (8,661,748) (8,488,678) 173,070 (18,186,376) (16,947,628) 1,238,748

Total (9,524,628) (8,458,950) 1,065,678 (4,947,419) (4,715,200) 232,~~19 (14,472,047) (13,174,150) 1,297,897

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And
Other Financing Sour<:es Over
Expenditures And Other Financing Uses (7,379,320) (2,257,250) 5,122,070 (4,329,833) (750,175) 3,579,6,58 1,0:38,487 1,298,116 259,629 (10,670,666) (1,709,309) 8,961,357

Fund BaIan<:es Beginning Of Year 8,447,606 8,447,606 12,686,307 12,686,307 13,841,218 13,841,218 34,975,131 34,975,131

Residual Equity Transfer In 80,342 80,3142 10,886 10,886 91,228 91,228

Fund Balan<:es End Of Year (Note 16) $ 1,068,286 6,190,356 5,122,070 8,356,474 12,016,474 3,660,000 14,879,705 15,150,220 270,515 24,304,465 33,35-',050 9,052,585

See Accompanying Notes To Cormined Financial Statements,
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Exhibit 4

CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCE -- All PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988
With Comparative Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1987

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type Totals

(Memorandum Only)
Enterprise Internal Pension
(Note 1) Service Trust 1988

Operating Revenues:
Charges For Services $ 159,536,827 11,921,255 171,458,082 160,215,186
Taxes 649,735 649,735 1,231,645
Interest 4,996,923 4,996,923 4,597,962
Employee Contributions 950,426 950,426 903,605
Other Operating Revenues 6,955,085 258 6,955,343 6,499,383

Total Operating Revenues 166,491,912 11,921,255 6,597,342 185,010,509 173,447,781

Operating Expenses:
Personal Services 23,501,697 4,703,689 28,205,386 25,477,113
Contractual Services 1,474,946 1,474,946 1,413,005
Operation and 1\r1aintenance 30,002,386 7,480,881 37,483,267 33,110,437
Purchased Power 49,581,374 49,581,374 50,365,019
Refunds 257,633 257,633 233,671
Depreciation 17,353,924 1,286,963 18,640,887 18,077,904
Benefit Payments 1,155,693 1,155,693 1,076,587
Payments In lieu Of Taxes (Note 2) 4,194,062 4,194,062 4,084,301
Adm inistrative 8,947,397 5,801 8,953,198 8,159,672

Total Operating Expenses 135,055,786 13,471,533 1,419,127 149,946,446 141,997,709

Net Operating Income (Loss) 31,436,126 (1,550,278) 5,178,215 35,064,063 31,450,072

Non-Operating Revenue (Expense):
Interest Revenue 01::"71) I:AO ..4".'" n~n 8,995,416 7,916,731u,..J,c.,v&fO "t..::..::,ooo
Contributions From Stores Revolving 144,561
Gain (Loss) On Disposal Of Assets (42,181) (42,181) 5,439,053
Operating Grants 1,612,576 1,612,576 765,979
Amortization Of Deferred Charges (2,164,456) (2,164,456) (2,006,173)
Donations 71,000 71,000 71,843
Interest Expense And Fiscal Charges (Note 10) (22,766,604) (49,056) (22,815,660) (25,765,710)
Miscellaneous

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expense)

Net Income Before Operating Transfers

Operating Transfers in 1,795,458 1,795,458 2,465,364
Net Income (Loss) 18,584,114 (1,160,244) 5,178,215 22,602,085 22,250,487

Depreciation Transfer On Contributed Capital 1,824,118 346,827 2,170,945 2,025,682
Increase In Retained Earnings/Fund Balance 20,408,232 (813,417) 5,178,215 24,773,030 24,276,169

Retained Earnings/Fund Balance Beginning Of Year

Residual Equity Transfer Out

Retained Earnings/Fund Balance End Of Year $ 204971 030 7177781 55989665 268138476 243365446

See Accompanying Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988

With Comparative Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1987

Exhibit 5
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(EXHIBIT 5, Continued)

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund TyPe Totals

(Memorandum Only)
Enterprise Internal Pension

(Note 1) Service 1988 1987

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds From Issuance Of Revenue Bonds $ 93,191,904
Proceeds From Contract Used To Purchase Equipmert 562,000 562,000 49,855
Proceeds From Sale Of Investments 187,041,975 2,504,414 13,681,490 203,227,879 224,044,470
Proceeds From Sale Of Fixed Assets (395,918) 52,455 (343,463) 23,386,256
Payment For Purchase Of Investments I-IOO"7A44nJ'\\ (2,988,485) (18,650,379) (210,580,054) (263,992,062)\IVV,' ..... ,IVVJ

Increase In Claims 1,224,699 1,224,699 170,498
Additions To Fixed Assets (24,684,756) (1,925,135) (26,609,891 ) (20,948,623)
Additions To Contributed Capital 2,919,923 344,636 3,264,559 3,112,165
Equity Transfer (144,561)
Decrease (Increase) To Current Liabilities Payable

From Restricted Assets
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing

Activities (22,705,350) (787,416) (5,168,889) (28,661,655) 59,578,709

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Defeasance Of Long-Term Debt (80,325,000)
Repayment Of Long-Term Debt (13,915,000) (13,915,000) (13,895,000)
Installment Payments On Capital Leases (126,387) (455,207) (581,594) (527,613)

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (14,041,387) (455,207) (14,496,594) (94,747,613)

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash 1,951,124 (664,558) 85,187 1,371,753 267,737
Cash Beginning Of Year 8,412,159 4,503,570 44,238 12,959,967 12,692,230
Cash End Of Year $ 10,363,283 3,839,012 129,425 14,331,720 12,959,967

See Accompanying Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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NOTES TO COMBINED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CiTY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA
Notes nancial Statements

31, 1988

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFiCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Lincoln, Nebraska (City) was originally incorporated on April 7, 1869.
The City operates under a Home Rule Charter and has a Mayor-Council form of
government with an elected full-time chief executive, the Mayor, and an elected
legislative body, the Council, composed of 7 members. Three Council members are
elected at large and 4 by district on a nonpartisan basis for a term of 4 years. The
administration of City government is performed under the direction of the Mayor
through administrative departments. Services are provided to residents in many
areas, including public safety (Police-Fire), highways and streets, health, planning and
zoning, parks, recreation, urban development, mass transportation, electric system,
water and sanitary sewer system, hospital, golf courses, auditorium, and general
administrative services. Education, housing, and airport services are provided by the
Lincoln Public Schools, the Lincoln Housing Authority, and Lincoln Airport Authority,
respectively.

REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Lincoln's combined financial statements include the financial statements of
those separately administered component units that are included in the City of
Lincoln's oversight responsibility. City oversight responsibility is determined on the
basis of budget adoption, funding and selection of governing authority. Based on the
foregoing criteria, the financial statements of the following component units are
included in the accompanying combined financial statements:

Lincoln General Hospital

The Lincoln General Hospital Board is appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by
the City Council. The City Council exercises budgetary authority. Funding is
provided by charges for hospital services, rates for which require approval of the
City Council. Issuance of long-term debt requires approval of the City Council.
Operations of the Lincoln General Hospital are included with the Enterprise Fund
amounts in the combined financial statements.

Lincoln Electric System

The Lincoln Electric Administrative Board is appointed by the Mayor and confirmed
by the City Council. The City Council exercises budgetary authority. Funding is
provided by charges to electrical consumers, rates for which require approval of the
City Council. Issuance of long-term debt requires approval of the City Council.
Operations of the Lincoln Electric System are included with the Enterprise Fund
amounts in the combined financial statements:
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The followi
the City

Lincoln Public Schools

The School District was "'''''',''''1'1"''''''

the School District
Board of Education are r>.r1>"..Wrl, .....

has control over
Revenues are
income, fines and

the ability to issue
general obligation
overlapping debt.

Airport Authority

The rport Authority was authorized
statutes, was activated as of
the original board members.
corporate politic. The
The Airport Authority
to personal property.
control over all facilities "'"..."''"',.,.
aviation operation, air air safety operation for the City ncoln.
The Airport operation is not conducted within the geographical boundaries the
City, but is generally to Lincoln areas.
The Airport Authority use as
corporate shall
rentals, leases, etc.
to certify annually
purposes against all LIb4"lb4l1Jllv

City Counci I shall
same manner as
such levy shall
transferred to
purposes.
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The are

General Fund­
is used to account
accounted

Special Reyenue Funds - Special Funds are
proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable
capital projects) that are to res
purposes.

accumulation of resources
interest, and

resources
facilities (other than

Proprietary funds are
activities are simi
measurement focus is

following are the

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account operations that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to business
(a) where the intent of is
depreciation) of providi or se
continuing fi
where
earned,
maintenance,
purposes.
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matter of
next
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(8) Budgets are
special
funds.
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Cash held
invested in
specifically
to the individual
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Pledged at Value

INVESTMENTS

Idle Fund Investment Pool

Investments of the Idle Fund Investment Pool are made
funds and are not specifically identified
Treasurer at August 31, 1988

any specific
included the followi

all City
the City

banks' trust
in name.)

Deposits:
Bank
Time ,-... r;;IU'~.-,..
Cash on

Cash held
$30,350,786 as F'"OYlj~"'T£:lln

reporting classifications.

Pension Funds

Investments
(amortized
August 31, 1

Market

51,360,531
1

1,852,915
1 109
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Fire Pension Fund are held
name. Management plans

All securities of the Fire Pension Fund and
the banks' trust department or agent, not in the

investments trust

At August ,1988 LGH had investments, carried at cost or amortized cost, as
follows:

Securities Held
By The Bank's

Trust Department
Or Agent, In

The CUy's Name

Securities Held
By The Bank's

Trust
Or Carrying

Amount
Market
~

Government $3,1
Repurchase Agreements
Municipal Securities

At December ,1 LES had investments, carried at cost or amortized cost, as

Securities Held
By The Bank's

Trust Department
Or In

Securities Held
The Bank's

Trust
Or Agent, Not

In The CUy's Name
Carrying
Amount

Market
~

Hel::onlCllliatlCln to Exhibit 1 -
Certificates Deposit
Classified With Deposits

Investments Included
On Exhibit 1

$

82,292 1

82,292,301

83,292,301

87,365,000
1 QQQ,QQQ

88,365,000

31 , 1 Lincoln
as shown on the

investments,
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Government Securities
Reconciliation To Exhibit 1 ­

Certificates of Deposit
Classified With Deposits

Investments Included On Exhibit 1

Lincoln Water System

Carrying
Amount

1,600 000
$6,404,063

Market

At August 31, 1988 Lincoln
as follows:

System had investments,

Government Securities
Reconciliation To Exhibit 1 ­

Certificates of Deposit
Classified With Deposits

Investments Included On Exhibit 1

All Other City Funds

Carrying
Amount

$7,317,052

Market
Value

Investments of all other City funds do not vary significantly in either type or risk are
carried at cost or amortized cost. These investments at August 31 , 1988 were as
foliows:

Investment
Held By City

in CUy's Name

Securities Held
Bank's Bank's

Trust Dept.
Or Agent, Not Carrying

...........~.............................. In City's Name Amount
Market
~

Government Securities
Government Agencies
Repurchase Agreements
Interfund Investments

$ 11,527,238
20,962,892

3,061,000
71,000
71,000 32.490,130

11 11,882,859
20,962,892 21,818,273

3,061,000 3,061,000
__....71......,0....,,0.....0 71,000

35,622,130 36,833,132
Reconciliation To Exhibit 1 -

Certificates of Deposit
Classified With Deposits

Investments Included On Exhibit 1

There were no in\IL"'lE"T'nt"IIonT~

period
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(5) RECEIVABLES

38 3,051
221 1,172

10,644 691
304 622
251 26,350 2,000

96 348
882 1,390

1,792 43,577 2,6917,736

7,736

1,483

1,483

General $ 2,872 141
Special Revenue 778 173
Debt Service 1,087 338
Capital Projects 318
Enterprise 26,099
Internal Service 252
Trust and Agency 163 345

$ 4,900 27,666

Receivables at August 31, 1988 consist of the following (in thousands):
ALLOWANCE

SPECiAL ASSESSMENTS FOR
ACCRUED GROSS UNCOL·

FUND TAXES ACCOUNTS CURRENT DEFERRED INTEREST RECEIVABLES LECTIBLES NET

3,051
1,172
9,953

622
24,350

348
1,390

40,886

Enterprise customer accounts receivable include unbilled charges for services.

Delinquent Special Assessment Receivables at August 31, 1988 were $2,280,959.

(6) DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

The total of Due from Other Governments of $3,514,145 includes the following
significant items:

Fund/Fund Type Amount

General
Street Const/Special Revenue

JTPAISpecial Revenue
lincoln/lancaster Co. Health/Special Revenue
lincoln Transportation System/Enterprise

Data Processing/Internal Service
library/Special Revenue

$1,726,973
596,848
140,506
62,445

174,222
50,068

111 ,803
235,273

77,540

State of Nebr., July Sales and Use Tax
State of Nebr., July Highway User Fees
State of Nebr., Contract Reimbursements
Federal Government, Cost Reimbursements
lancaster County, Cost Reimbursements
Federal Government, Cost Reimbursements
State of Nebr., Contract Reimbursements
lancaster County Billings
Taxes collected by lancaster County

(7) FIXED ASSETS

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

The City of Uncoln established a general fixed assets account group during the year
ended August 31 , 1982. All items are valued at historical cost, or, if donated, estimated
value at time of donation. The City has elected not to record infrastructure assets or to
depreciate general fixed assets. Approximately 12,200 items comprise the general fixed
assets. A summary of changes in general fixed assets since September 1, 1987 is as
shown on the next page:
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Balance

Land
Buildings
Improvements

Other Than
Buildings

Equipment

$11,820,685
19,1 17

1,211,012
11

153,346
1.094.114
2,577,094

1,710 12 ,987
19,246

10,761,197

A summary of Proprietary
August 31 , 1988 fol :

Type rty,

12
,1

87,894,109
ngs

Land
Buildings
Improvements Other
Equipment
Uti lity Plant
Construction in .... nr',..,. ..c ... C'lr'

Total

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Sanitary Landfill
Golf Courses
Equipment Management
Lincoln Sanitary Sewer
Lincoln System
Lincoln Electric System

(8)

The City has implemented Statement 6 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB 6) for year ended August 31, 1 for financial reporting
purposes. By implementing Statement 6, the Special Assessment fund type has been
eliminated and activity special assessments is in the Special
Revenue, Capital Projects, Debt fund bonded debt,
which in the is now in
Long-Term as ...,"""v"""..... , 1'"'\:"lI:'llR"~:-..:"II1
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Commitment. Special assessment bonds are backed by special assessment
collections and the full faith and credit of the City. In order to implement GASB 6,
the City has restated the 1987 columns of the general purpose financial statements
by increasing expenditures by $1,995,000 and by making a Prior Period Adjustment
of $19,430,000 to the August 31, 1987 Beginning Fund Balance on Exhibit

(9) LONG..TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the year
ended August 31, 1988 (in thousands of dollars):

General
Obligation

General Special
Long-Term Assessment Obligations

Liability Debt With Accrued Under
Account Governmenlal Revenue Capilal Compensated Land

Group Commitment Bonds Notes Leases Absences Contracts TOlal

Balances At August 31, 1987 $ 30,340 17,435 363,077 7,710 812 928 1,088 421,390
Additions:

New Accrued Compensated
Absence Obligations 91 91

New Capital Leases 278 278
Deductions:

Commercial Paper Notes 5,000 5,000
Serial Bonds 1,705 1,895 8,160 11,760
Accrued Compensated Absences 35 35
Electric Revenue Fuel Credit

Obligation Notes 755 755
Payments on Land Contracts 363 363
Capital Lease Payments 633 633

Balances At August 31 , 1988 $ 28,635 15,540 354,917 1,955 457 984 725 403,213

Long-term debt is comprised of the following individual issues (in thousands of
dollars):

AVERAGE
ORiGINAL INTEREST DATE INTEREST
AMOUNT ISSUED ISSUE RATE WHEN DUE CALLABLE DATE OUTSTANDING

General Obligation Bonds:

General Bonds:

2,350 01/01/71 Various Purpose 4.77292 Ser. '72 to '90 1981 Semiannually $ 380
3,400 03'01178 Storm sewer 4.88214 Ser. '79 to '00 1988 2,140

262 09/01/79 Swimming Pool 5.34496 Ser. '80 to '00 None 65
3,455 07/01/80 Storm Sewer 6.44007 Ser. '81 to '95 1988 1,615

600 08101/81 Transit Sys. Improvements 8.90000 Ser. '82 to '92 1987 150
985 05101/83 Auditorium & Fire Department 7.02416 Ser. '84 to '93 1988 500

2,550 06115/83 Storm Sewer 8.17875 Ser. '84 to '00 1991 1,700
6,815 05101/00 Various Purpose 6.67888 Ser. '87 to '06 1991 6,135

12,000 06115/87 Downtown Redevelopment 7.15058 Ser. '87 to '02 1990 11,820
TOTAL GENERAL BONDS 24,505

Tax Allocation Bonds:

295 08101/84 Gold's Galleria Redevelop. 11.48583 Ser. '00 to '93 1990 Semiannually 210
505 08101/84 Gold's Galleria Redevelop. 11.50000 Term '00 1994 505

3,970 04101/85 Cornhusker Square 9.85770 Ser. '00 to '97 1990 3,415
TOTAL TAX ALLOCATION BONDS 4,130
TOTAL GENERAL BONDS INCLUDING TAX ALLOCATION $ 28;635

31



AVERAGE
ORiGINAL INTEREST DATE INTEREST
AMOUNT ISSUED ISSUE WHEN DUE CALlABLE DATE OUTSTANDING

Special Assessment Bonds:

3,000 01/01/71 Special Assessment Revolv. 4.70642 Ser. '72 to '91 1981 Semiannually 450
6,000 11/15175 Special Assessment Revolv. 5.72240 Ser. '76 to '90 1985 1,200
4,000 11115176 Special Assessment Revolv. 4.89073 Ser. 77 to '91 1900 1,060
6,000 03101/78 Special Assessment Revolv. 4.82530 Ser. '79 to '98 1988 3,000
6,000 09101179 Special Assessment Revolv. 5.48328 Ser. '80 to '99 1989 3,600
3,500 08101/81 Special Assessment Revolv. 9.82290 Ser. '82 to '99 1992 2,145
3,200 05101/83 Special Assessment Revolv. 7.71430 Ser. '84 to '01 1993 2,325
2,200 04104184 Special Assessment Revolv. 8.99820 Ser. '85 to '04 1991 1,760

TOTAL SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS 15,540
TOTAL GENERAL OBliGATION BONDS $ 44,175

Revenue Bonds:

3,500 04/01/65 Water 3.24258 Ser. '80 to '95 1987 1,725
6,500 02101/77 Water 5.20000 Ser. '80 to '95 1987 4,770
3,000 08115180 Water 8.09290 Ser. '83 to '97 1991 2,700
3,500 04/01/84 Water 9.29779 Ser. 'S7 to '99 1991

TOTAL WATER REVENUE BONDS

1,325 06101/72 Sanitary Sewer 4.68460 Ser. '75 to '89 1982 375
4,000 08115/77 Sanitaiy SeWGi 5.19335 Sar. '80 to '95 19S7 3,400
4,000 08115180 Sanitary Sewer 7.88890 Ser. '83 to '97 1991 3,215
2,750 05101/86 Sanitary Sewer 6.58180 Ser. '89 to '99 1991

TOTAL SANITARY SEWER BONDS

2,555 12101/82 Hospital Revenue 9.74800 Ser. '86 to '97 1992 Semiannually 2,295
1,820 12101/82 Hospital Revenue 11.00000 Term 2002 1992 1,820

14,615 12101/82 Hospital Revenue 11.25000 Term 2014 1992
TOTAL HOSPITAL BONDS

2,300 01/01/78 Parking (Centrum) 6.57450 Ser. 'SO to '98 1983 Semiannually 1,500
320 06101/83 Parking (Cornhusker) 9.90200 Ser. '85 to '98 1993 280

1,530 06101183 Parking (Cornhusker) 10.00000 Term'99 to '03 NlA
TOTAL PARKING BONDS

24,410 03130177 Electric Power Supply '77
Series A 5.55041 Ser. 78 to '98 1987 Semiannually 17,990

42,790 03130/77 6.10000 Term 2011 1987 42,790
8,215 03101/78 Electric Power Supply '78

Series A 5.93065 Ser. '79 to '00 1988 6,455
44,685 03101/78 5.90000 Term 2014 1988 44,685
47,000 12101/79 Electric Power Supply '79

Series A 7.72640 Sar. '80 to '99 1989 8,865
7.60000 Term 2004 1989 6,460
7.75000 Term 2015 1989 24,885

10.995 10101/80 Eloctiic POWGi Supply 8.26000 Sar. '84 to '95 1990 4,640
34,455 11/15186 Electric Power Supply '00

Series A - Current Interest 6.08901 Ser. '87 to '99 1996 31,520
5,492 11/15186 Electric Power Supply '00

Series A - Capital Appreciation 7.17760 Ser. '99 to '02 1996 Maturity 5,557
20,145 11/15100 Electric Power Supply '00

Series A - Current Interest 7.12500 Term 2006 1996 Semiannually 20,145
22,550 11/15186 Electric Power Supply '86

Series A - Current Interest 7.50000 Term 2016 1996 22,550
10,485 11/15100 Electric Power Supply '86

Series A - Capital Appreciation 7.50000 Term 2015 1996 Maturity 10,485
20,630 03130/77 Elec. Dist Facility '77

Series A 5.60611 Ser. '78 to '98 1987 Semiannually 13,430
32,170 03130/77 6.12520 Term 2011 1987 32,170
15,100 03/01/78 Elec. Dist. Facility '78

Series A 5.85855 Sar. '77 to '98 1988 3,615
6.00000 Term 2012 1999 9,710

5,000 12101/79 Elec. Dist. Facility '79
Series A 7.00392 Ser. '80 to '99 1989 1,155

7.87500 Term 2013 1989 3,450
TOTAL ELECTRIC BONDS 310,557
TOTAL REVENUE BONDS $ 354,917

Notes:

11,430 Various Electric Fuel Credit Obligation Lesser of Various AnyTime Quarterly
Note 8"1" or 62.5%

of Prime

The annual on areas
shown on
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REVENUE
GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS AND NOTES CAPITAL LEASES

GENERAL BONDS SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
YEAR ENDING BONDS

AUGUST 31 BONDS INTEREST BONDS INTEREST INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST

1989 CI' 1,810 1.999 1,895 1,003 8,460 22,827 786 84~

1990 1,850 1,878 1,895 881 8,440 22,328 396 33
1991 1,590 1,768 1,895 767 9,075 21,867
1992 2,035 1,651 1,350 668 8,775 21,365
1993 2,130 1,515 1,085 2,214 9,300 20,808
1994-1998 10,710 5,241 5,425 568 55,015 94,731
1999 & Thereafter 8,510 1,930 1,995 257,807 247,110

$ 28,635 15,982 15,540 6,101 356,872 451,036 1,182 117

Funds of $2,701 ,818, $1,070,812 and $8,495,775 are available in the debt service
funds to service the General Obligation Bonds, Tax Allocation Bonds, and Special
Assessment Bonds respectively.

Underthe City's Home Rule Charter, there is no legal debt margin. The various bond
indentures contain significant limitations and restrictions on annual debt service
requirements, maintenance of and flow of monies through various restricted ac­
counts, minimum amounts to be maintained in various bond reserve funds, and
minimum revenue bond coverages. The City is in compliance with all such significant
limitations and restrictions.

The general obligation debt of all local governmental units which provide services
within the City's boundaries and which debt must be borne by properties in the City
(commonly called overlapping debt) as of August 31, 1988, is summarized below
(unaudited):

City
School District #1
Airport Authority
Lancaster County
Southeast Community College

Net Debt
Outstanding

$31,906,595
None

1,565,000(1)
None
None

Percentage
Applicable
To the City

100.0

Direct and
Overlapping Debt

31,906,595
None

1,565,000
None
None

(1)Does not include Special Obligation Bonds of $771,819 payable from lease rentals.

The City has no direct liability for the School District, Lancaster County, Airport
Authority, or Southeast Community College debt summarized above. This results
in a per capita direct City debt of $171.89, a per capita direct and overlapping debt
of $180.32, a ratio of direct City debt to 1988 actual valuation of .70 percent, and a
ratio of direct and overlapping debt to 1988 actual valuation of .74 percent.
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(10)

Total interest cost Enterprise funds during the year ended Au­
gust 31 , 1988 was $22,924,984, of which $158,079 was capitalized net of
investment earnings of amount of ,was to
earnings.

(11) SEGMENTS OF OTHER ENTERPRISE ACTIVITIES

are financed by user ,..n'~f'r,!o~

landfill,
Various services
parking, golf, hospital,
auditorium.

Lincoln
General

Lincoln
Sanitary

Lincoln
Water

Lincoln
Electric

Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:

Depreciation
Other

Operating Income (Loss)

2,094,000 1,766,939 1,710,775 10,486,141 1,296,069 17,353,924

Operating Grants, Operating
Transfers In, Donations $ 71,000 3,408,034 3,479,034

Net Income

Net Working Capital

Total Assets

3,310,000 356,871,7239,740,000 12,580,000 312,511,723Bonds And Notes Payable $ 18,730,000

==========================================================
Current Capital

Contributions $

Contributed Capital

Fund Equity $ 21,861,000 62,611,100 74,998,568 87,046,247 22,003,414 268,520,329

Acquisition Of Property,
Plant, & Equipment $

==============================================================
"Other" column is attributable the

an operating loss of $3,799,550, but
of $3,091,31 which are

(12)

City
amounts collected
agency
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The revenue bonds outstanding at August 31, 1988 related to these projects are as
follows:

State Refunding
Game and Parks Commission Refunding

The City has entered into these lease agreements solely for the purpose of assisting
the State in providing office buildings for use exclusively by the State and at no greater
cost to the State than the cost thereof to the City. The bonds constitute C'1I'"\£:!l,...'-::lI

obligations of the City, payable solely from revenues derived by the City under the
lease agreement with the State. The bonds are not a debt of the City within the
meaning of any constitutional, statutory or charter limitation upon the creation of
general obligation indebtedness of the City. Therefore, the cost of these State
buildings and the related revenue bonds outstanding have been excluded from the
City's fi nancial statements.

(13) EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLANS

The employees of the City are covered by several retirement plans. The Fire and
Police Department Plans are administered by the City and are included in the
Fiduciary Fund type. All other plans are administered by outside trustees and are not
included in'the City's combined financial statements. A summary of the plans follows:

FIRE AND POLICE DEPARTMENT

Commissioned employees of the Police and Fire Departments were covered by a
state-imposed, single employer, City administered retirement system through
August 31, 1987. Beginning September 1, 1987, control of the plan transferred
from the State legislature to the City Council. The Police and Fire Pension Fund and
Fire Pension are carried in the Fiduciary nd type on the City's financial

latest actuarial study for the plan was as of December 31 , 1987.
officers and firefighters employed prior to May, 1984, contribute either 7% or

salary based on a one time determination made by the employee in
employed subsequent May, 1984, contribute 7.60/0 their base

percentage of base salary paid upon retirement is dependent on the
percentage of withholding selected by the employee. December 31, 1987 there
were 484 members and 106 retirants and beneficiaries.

Police and firefighters are eligible for regular retirement when
(a) in the paid fire or police department for a period of
(b) attained the age of 55 years; and (c) to from active
go on the reti The pension shall a straight life pension of either 54% or 58%
of the pay for such firefighter or police officer, paid monthly. The pension of a
police or firefighter who elects to remain on active duty after becoming eligible
for shall be increased by 20/0 of his or her regular pay for each of

subject to a maximum increase of 10%. Any firefighter or police
retires on or after his or her 50th birthday, but prior to his or 55th

has completed at least 21 years service shall
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equivalent the
has provisions
10 years

nl"f':::lp"I"fI"7,o,1"f measure
I"" .... '• ..., .... salary

Orrlfl"'UI,,\\ICIO service to date. This measure is
used to determine contributions to
December 31, 1 actuarial

(1 )

(2)

(3)

(4)

from 0.7% year,

in of were

$ o

Net ....

Assets in excess

During
$5,019 n
assumptions

increase
in actuarial
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and actuarial accrued liabi lity the year
using an entry age actuarial funding method.
in which the actuarial present value
included in an actuarial valuation is
service of the individual between entry age assumed age(s). Normal costs
and the allocation of actuarial present values between service rendered before and
after the valuation date were determined using an individual entry-age actuarial cost
method having the following characteristics:

(1) The annual normal costs for payable the
member's actual date of employment to projected date of retirement, are
sufficient to accumulate the actuarial present value of the member's benefit at
the time of retirement;

(2) annual normal cost is a constant ofthe member's year by year
pay.

liabilities were as a payroll

During year August 31, 1987 contributions totalling $1,791
$887,985 employer and $903,605 employee - were made in accordance with
contribution requirements determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as
December , 1985. Payroll covered by the plan during the year ended

, 1 was approximately actuarial
liabilities were amortized as a percent of payroll over a period of 19 years.
employer contributions consisted of $1 4 and $(534,329)

was

assumptions used
used to compute the

contribution requirements were
measure of pension
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Actual
Fiscal Year Dollar Contribution As

Ended Valuation Date Rates As Percents Valuation A Percentage Of
August 31 December 31 Valuation Payroll

1981 1979 9.79 % $ 7,816,991 $ 830,103 $
1981 1979@ 9.96 7,816,991 844,517 839,306 10.73 %
1982 1980 9.77 8,257,426 875,082 1,448,697 17.54
1983 1981# 14.03 9,038,920 1,375,574 1,573,311 17.41
1984 1982 13.72 10,407,029 1,548,783 1,539,900 14.80
1985 1983# 13.53 10,435,738 1,531,548 1,427,884 13.68
1986 1984 12.13 10,841,626 1,426,477 677,197 6.25
1987 1985 11.04 11,265,219 1,349,020 887,985 7.88

@After crJanges in actuarial or methcds.
#After changes in benefit provisions.
"Computed dollar contribution is equal to the co ntribution percent times the valuation

projected to tl,e appropriate fiscal year. Thecurrsnt projection factor is equal to 1.0847.

Analysis of Funding Progress
Amounts in Thousands)

Year Ended
December 31

Pension
Benefit

(6)
Unfunded
PBO as a

Percentage of
Covered

1984
1985
1986
1987

$34,318
39,895
44,671
50,417

$31,373
36,003
39,996
45,015

109 %

111
112
112

$10,842
11,265
11,738
12,949

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Further
Valuation, which 1'"\"''''''''11"'''10

the plan's obligation.

in
about progress

The City is funding
"old" State laws
assets, and
valuation, are as

under a employer plan for firemen hired under
1947. Actuarial present value of plan benefits,

, 1986,
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used in making the valuation was 60/0, per compounded annually. the
year ended December 31 , 1987, covered and payroll was $43,353 and included
one active employee. The computed contribution
$195,763 for current service costs and retirants
unfunded accrued liabilities. unfunded liability
parts:

(1) Unfunded retirant and beneficiary liabilities of $535,401 were amortized as a
level dollar amount over a period of three years.

(2) Unfunded accrued active member liabilities of $1 ,415 were amortized as a
level dollar amount over a period of eight

Pension Benefit Obligation has not

The City owns and operates its own
included enterprise funds in the ........"..... II"!I'..........

entities are controlled and managed by an are
by the City's general tax revenues. Both systems provide retirement benefits their
employees under their own separate plans, such benefits being funded solely from
revenues derived from the operation of each of the respective facilities. A summary of
the electric system and general hospital plans is as follows:

Electric System

LES has a contributory retirement plan covering all employees who have
employed for a continuous period of 2 years. plan is a straight money ,...... t,,~('"
plan. LES's contribution is equal to 200% the employees' contributions
range from 2-5% gross wages. Vesting of contributions occurs over a 1
period. forfeitures are used to employer contributions.
benefits are Payroll and contribution information is as follows:

Percent
Of Covered

1
1986

10,886,000
10,334,000

995,000
854,000

9.1
8.26
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average monthly earnings Social Security primary
reduced by 1/25 each service less than 25. Also the
provides early age and 5 years of service,
age 45 and 5 years service, disability benefits age and 10
or age 60 with no requirement. All early retirement,
benefits are based on a percentage of vested accrued benefit the applicable
date. At July 1, 1988 of the actuarial valuation) the Hospital's total payroll
for covered employees was $9,397,000. At July 1, 1988, there were active
employees, 72 retirees and and 39 vested and terminated

Presented below is the total nsion benefit obligation of the Hospital
The total obligation is based on the projected unit credit cost method
a substitute for the standardized measure which is required
Accounting Standard -

ne
these assumptions are

il'V'lll",TU''\'"I'-' are used
obligation

The Projected Unit Method develops a nonnal cost and a pension
obligation for each participant. A
separation date calculated is
benefits allocated
cost multiplied by
For an inactive participant
benefit obligation is
The sum of these individual
obligation for the plan.

A variety of
credit measu re of
summarized below:

(1) The present was
rate of 8%.

(2) Future pension payments reflect an assumption of a
salary increase as a of inflation.

(compounded

(3) Future pension
merit adjustments or
the terms of the

The assets in excess pension
actuarial valuation) was as shown on

at July 1, 1988 (the date
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$ 1,1
Current employees:

Employer-financed vested retirement,
disability and pre-retirement death benefits

Employer-financed nonvested

Total pension benefit obligation

Net assets available for benefits at market

2,633,000

3,944,000

Assets in excess of pension benefit obligation $ 936,000

No changes in actuarial assumptions or benefit provisions that would significantly
affect the valuation the pension benefit obligation occurred during the year.

The Hospital's funding policy is to annually contribute the normal cost plus a 20 year
amortization of unfunded assets in excess of) pension benefit obligation both of
which are determined on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method
described above. Total Hospital contributions to the pension plan for the years ended
August 31, 1988, 1987 and 1986 were actuarially determined as described above
and were based on an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 1987, 1986 and 1985 as
follows:

pension
(assets in

excess of pension benefit obligation)

1aaa

$231,000 207,000

(28.000)

pension contribution for 1988 was LlLIl~-"LiIUl

actuarial assumptions, (b) benefit provisions, (c) actuarial funding
r rs as used ine pe n contri

in previous

Hospital is as on the
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(14 )

The City participates in a nu of federally grant programs, principally
UMTA Capital, Planning and Operating Assistance Grants, Federal Highway
Construction rants, Title III Aging Grants, Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG), Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA), public works programs.
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount of expenditures,
if any, which may be disallowed by the granting agencies is not determinable at this
time; however, City officials do not believe that such amounts would be significant.

The Hospital has an agreement with Radiology Associates, P. for the
diagnostic and therapeutic radiological services. part of the agreement, each
may take unilateral action to initiate the sale to the Hospital of part or all the
radiological equipment in the Hospital, which is owned by Radiology Associates, P.C.,
upon giving 240 days notice. The estimated market value of such equipment
August 31 , 1988 was approximately $7,340,000.

The Hospital has a similar agreement with Pathology Medical Services, for
provision of pathological services. of agreement provide for sale of
or part of the pathological equipment to the Hospital at the original cost, less straight..
line depreciation to date based on eight-year asset lives. This net book value at
August 31 , 1988 was approximately $85,000.

The Lincoln Sanitary Sewer System has commitments under major construction
contracts in progress of approximately $890,000 August 31, 1988, which will
financed primarily through operations and surplus funds.

The Lincoln System has commitments u
approximately $1,100,000 at 31, 1
operations and surplus funds.

The is a in a number of lawsuits
majority of these lawsuits relate to condemnations street and utility
projects which are not included in tax supported funds. The City Attorney is the
opinion that there is a reasonable possibility that the City will incur losses on such
lawsuits not to exceed $148,000. In addition there is a reasonable possibility that a
loss incurred in a lawsuit filed against the City for alleged negligence and

The plaintiff is seeking approximately $1,000,000 in special
consortium, and a prayer for unspecified general damages.

The Processing Division has the following commitment:

into a three-year contract
n for data processing management

this agreement are as shown on the

September 1, 1987,
'/C'Torn and Computer Technology

services. Maximum annual payments
page:
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1

The City's costs
data processing
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Department of Energy for OISIDOSHI

~nn,.n $40,500,000 relati
is being

1990. Costs relating to
as purchased

LlV,t.........ung interests in the output of two existing N power plants, a thi
rcent (approximately 1

and Gerald Gentleman
respectively. participation reements continue I

II"nll"'l''''lI'''il"'t.1I''I commercial operation or the final maturity occurs on
related incurred by N to finance the facilities, whichever occurs last.
cost payments under the agreements are on a participation basis whether or not
plants are operating or operable. LES's share of the total fixed costs incurred,
$9,1 and $9,661,000 in 1987 and 1986, respectively. The expected fixed
requirements aggregate $10,076,000, $9,458,000, $10,281,000, $10,081,000,
$10 ,000, respectively, in each of the five years subseque

r31, 1987.

Project (project)
In~c~~n 31,1987, the

1
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Debt
Revenue

Revenues and Other Sources:
GAAP Basis

Add: Prior Year Accrual Adjustments1
Less: Current Year Accrual Adjustments1

Budget Basis

Expenditures and Other Uses:
GAAP Basis

Add: Prior Year Accrual Adjustments1
Current

Less: Current Year Accrual
Prior Year Encumbrances2

Budget Basis

1Timing Difference
2Basis Difference

(17)

Interfu at

General Fund

1

10,214

1

Special Revenue Funds:
Advance Acquisition
Athletic Field &
Aviation Promotion
Civil Defense nd
Cable Access Television
Lincoln City Fu
Lincoln Area on
Lincoln/Lancaster
Northeast Radial
Social Security
Street Construction
Unemployment
Sanitary Districts
Community
Grants-In-Aid

Shari
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Interfund ..... .,,'....... ,..... r>. and Payables Balances (Continued)

Interfund
Receivables

Tax Allocation Projects Debt Service
Bond Interest & Redemption Fund
Special Assessments

Total Debt Service Funds

1
231

498
349

12,802
2,770

367,733

Vehicle
Sanitary Landfill Purchase & Construction Fund
Downtown Redevelopment Fund
Other Capital Projects Fund
""" ..... '''"' ..... ''b41 Assessments

"",,o,LJIU;;U Projects Funds

Capital Projects
Storrn Sewer Bond Construction Fund
Storm Construction Fund

Enterprise Funds:
Parking Lot Revolving Fund
Golf Fund

Landfill Fund
Enterprise Funds

7,434
26,324
14,425

158,178

4

5,635
21

617
4,021
1

90,621

41,369
415,815
122,421
37,167

Revolving Fund
Fund

Public Works Equipment Management Fund
Police Fund
Print Services Revolving

Fund
Service Funds

Internal

Fund
Pension Funds

Total Pension Trust Funds 71,892
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Interfund _ .....".......,'-""'" .... -.=

Interfund

Expendable Trust Funds:
Parks & Recreation Special Projects Fund
Commission on Aging Gift Fund
Library Funds

Total Trust Funds
Agency Funds:

Collections Due to Other Governments
Payroll
Earnings on Fund
Utilities Suspense Fund
Public Office ng Revenue Bonds

(State of Nebraska
Undistributed i-Ir""'U"",Cl,f'1'U

Total
Total

(18)

The Revenue Shari
appropriations.
exceeding

Fund had expenditures of $7,706 which
Construction Fund had expenditures of

1 $102,434.

(19)

in 1

(20)

risks of loss related to torts;
; errors or omissions; injuries to

compensation for over years and began
..... UI.J ........ transportation liability in October, 1985,

auto liability risk continues to be insured on a
rated insurance company. The self-insurance

the Risk Management Division. City is
risks up $300,000 per individual, $500,000 per

$125,000 per occurrence, long-
which included

covered by a
$300
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per occurrence. The Nebraska Political Tort Claims Act limits the City's liability for tort
claims to $1,000,000 per individual and $5,000,000 for all individuals per occurrence.
The governmental and proprietary funds premium nts the
Insurance Revolving Funds.

The City retained the services of an actuary during 1988 to prepare an analysis of the
self-insured workers' compensation, general liability, and public transportation liability
risks. The analysis will be used to assist the City with its financial planning and
management of the self-insurance program. Included in the specific objectives of the
study were to:

Estimate the outstanding liabilities for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1988.

Forecast ultimate incurred losses and incurred but not reported (IBNR) losses for
fiscal years ended August 31, 1989 through August 31, 1991.

Estimate the required funding level for the City's self-insured liabilities.

The City funds its self-insurance program on a "pay as you go" basis. Annual
premiums charged to the funds are based on estimates of the amount to be paid in the
fiscal year. Claims liabilities of $2,974,420 were recorded at August 31, 1988. This
is the actuarially estimated amount of both workers' compensation and liability claims
based on an estimate of ultimate incurred losses as of that date. The Insurance
Revolving Fund included with the internal service funds has a deficit of $771,785 in
retained earnings at August 31, 1988, which the City anticipates to begin funding in
the fiscal year ending August 31, 1990.

51



(THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)

52



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL
FUND STATEMENTS.AND SCHEDULES
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GENERAL FUND

This fund accounts for aU financial resources not accounted for in other
funds. It finances the regular day-to-day operation of the basic
governmental activities, such as legislative, judicial, administration,
police protection, fire protection, legal services, planning, property
management, and parks and recreation. Appropriations are made from
the fund annually. The fund's existence is perpetual.
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A-2

CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Legislative:

Personal Services $ 78,554 78,610 (56)
Supplies 1,460 727 733
Other Services And Charges 52,459 32,838 19,621
Capital Outlay 1,200 1,190 10

Total Legislative 133,673 113,365 20,308

Executive:
Personal Services 571,449 541,657 29,792
Supplies 21,532 20,340 1,192
Other Services And Charges 137,169 136,358 811
Capital Outlay 69,594 78,446 (8,852)

Total Executive 799,744 776,801 22,943

Financial Administration:
Personal Services 806,624 806,591 33
Supplies 30,870 27,108 3,762
Other Services And Charges 321,852 296,757 25,095
Capital Outlay 3,600 13,344 (9,744)

Total Financial Administration 1,162,946 1,143,800 19,146

Law:
Personal Services 704,110 694,017 10,093
Supplies 26,750 24,641 2,109
Other Services And Charges 51,020 32,926 18,094
Capital Outlay 8,650 7,769 881

Total Law 790,530 759,353 31 ,177

Personnel Administration:
Personal Services 341,812 333,483 8,329
Supplies 14,045 10,244 3,801
Other Services And Charges 80,942 77,698 3,244
Capital Outlay 8,064 (8,064)

Total Personnel Administration 436,799 429,489 7,310

(Continued)
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(GENERAL FUND, Continued) A-2

Planning And Zoning:
Personal Services 593,729 584,623 9,106
Supplies 12,550 11,261 1,289
Other Services And Charges 124,330 124,219 111
Capital Outlay 3,700 3,597 103

Total Planning And Zoning 734,309 723,700 10,609

Buildings And Plant:
Personal Services 210,969 194,270 16,699
Supplies 23,260 23,066 194
Other Services And Charges 554,746 554,226 520
Capital Outlay

Total Buildings And Plant

Urban Development:
Personal Services 342,884 356,462 (13,578)
Supplies 6,600 4,257 2,343
Other Services And Charges 160,834 137,003 23,831
Capital Outlay 350 934

Total Urban Development 510,668 498,656

Miscellaneous:
Personal Services 2,103,656 2,088,140 15,516
Other Services And Charges 2,151,568 2,047,855 103,713
Capital Outlay 708,250 646,983

Total Miscellaneous 4,963,474 4,782,978

Total General Government 10,321,118 10,001,691 319,427

PUBLIC SAFETY:
Police:

Personal Services 8,133,179 8,134,288 (1,109)
Supplies 148,577 146,259 2,318
Other Services And Charges 1,598,740 1,428,309 170,431
Capital Outlay 29,474 25,844 3,630

Total Police 9,909,970 9,734,700 175,270

Fire:
Personal Services 6,908,947 6,864,633 44,314
Supplies 260,801 258,892 1,909
Other Services And Charges 351,092 365,960 (14,868)
Capital Outlay 184,228 177,975 6,253

Total Fire 7,705,068 7,667,460 37,608

Codes Administration:
Personal Services 1,197,011 1,179,689 17,322
Supplies 42,047 41,048 999
Other Services And Charges 159,379 142,659 16,720
Capital Outlay

Total Codes Administration

(Continued)
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(GENERAL FUND, Continued) A-2

Communications:
Personal Services 680,267 679,936 331
Supplies 10,390 7,891 2,499
Other Services And Charges 86,970 81,305 5,665
Capital Outlay 2,400 5,136 (2,736)

Total Communications 780,027 774,268 5,759

Transportation:
Personal Services 759,184 759,639 (455)
Supplies 174,180 174,365 (185)
Other Services And Charges 273,881 265,658 8,223
Capital Outlay 17,100 18,147 (1,047)

Total Transportation 1,224,345 1,217,809 6,536

Total Public Safety 21,028,604 20,767,234 261,370

STREETS AND HIGHWAYS:
Street Maintenance:

Personal Services 1,168,613 1,010,561 158,052
Supplies 185,999 135,850 50,149
Other Services And Charges 956,875 770,051 186,824
Capital Outlay 22,599 18,047 4,552

Total Street Maintenance 2,334,086 1,934,509 399,577

Street Lighting:
Other Services And Charges 1,528,916 1,522,592 6,324

Total Streets And Highways 3,863,002 3,457,101 405,901

CULTURE -- RECREATION --
Parks And Recreation:

Personal Services 3,375,153 3,298,792 76,361
Supplies 363,791 380,667 (16,876)
Other Services And Charges 1,419,562 1,340,022 79,540
Capital Outlay 42,518 82,341 (39,823)

Total Culture -- Recreation 5,201 ,024 5,101 ,822 99,202

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 40,413.748 39.327.848 1,085,900
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

A special revenue fund is established to account for the proceeds from a
specific revenue source that is legally restricted to expenditures for a
specified purpose.

Advance ACQujsition Fund - To account for funds to be used for the
acquisition of real estate for public purposes. Net proceeds from the sale
or exchange of real estate owned by the City shall be credited to this
fund, and the fund may also be increased by General Fund
appropriations, or proceeds from general obligation borrowing.

Athletic Field and Facility Improvement Fund - account for proceeds
from a surcharge applied to registration fees charged by the Recreation
Division for various athletic activities. These monies must be used for
improvements to athletic field and facilities.

Aviation Promotion Fund - To account for monies received from a tax
levied specifically for the purpose of promoting air transportation in and
out of Lincoln.

Civil Defense Fund - To account for the costs of operating the City of
Lincoln/Lancaster County Civil Defense Department. Financing is
provided by Federal, City, and County Funds.

Cable Access Television Fund - To account for receipt and disbursement
of educational and governmental access capital equipment and facilities
grants. The Franchise Agreement between the City and Lincoln
Cablevision, effective August 5, 1985, required Cablevision to deposit
$400,000 in such a fund. Cablevision is required to match, one for one,
any contributions by the City for such purposes up to $100,000.

Lincoln City Libraries Fund - To account for the costs of providing library
services to the citizens of Lincoln. Financing is provided by a specific
annual tax levy, fines and fees, and reimbursement from Lancaster
County for services provided to County residents.

Lincoln Area Agency on Aging Fund - To account for the cost of providing
various services to senior citizens through the Lincoln/Lancaster
Commission on Aging. Financing provided by Federal, State, County,
and City funds.

Lincoln/Lancaster County Health Fund - To account for the cost of
providing health services to the citizens of the City of Lincoln and
Lancaster County. Financing is provided by State, County, and City
funds.
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for the eventual

northeast part of the City. Actual
Ivll;,4L'V'YI by the voters disposition

Social Security Fund - City of Lincoln's matching
share of Social Security for employees paid from the General Fund
and other funds supported marily from general tax revenue. Financing
is provided by a specific annual property levy. Such property taxes
may only be for

Street Construction Fund ..
of highway allocation fees
law these monies are restricted
streets and highways and

the receipt and disbursement
of Nebraska. By State

construction ntenance
thereto.

~~~~~~........;:::=~~~~..:..x..:..:.-:.....=.~ - To account for cost of
nsurance paid to former employees of

departments ...:II................... primarily from tax revenues. The City reimburses
the State for actual rather a percentage of payroll. Financing
is provided a property tax Such taxes
may only be

Sanitary District Fund .. To account for the proceeds from Sanitary
District #1. When Sanitary District #1 went out of existence in 1956, all
of the District's and liabilities were transferred to the City of
Lincoln. The balance on hand was derived from special assessments
which had been levied by the District prior to the City's takeover. This
money is restricted for emergencies or contingency and must be used on
main trunk line sewers or the disposal plant.

Community Deyelopment Block Grant Fund .. To account for the cost of
providing services under the City's Community Development Block Grant
Program. Funding is provided by from the Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD).

for monies received from various
small categorical grants and

applicable.

for the Lincoln's Federal
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and accou
properties. Capital Improvement Assessment
projects are accounted for in the Capital Improvements Fund. Periodic
transfers are made the Capital Projects Fund to cover expenditures.
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B-1

CITY OF UNCOlN, ME
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
AUGUST 31,1988

With Comparative Totals For August 31. 1987

AltIlelic Flllld ILincoin lincoln! Com"",nity Tollilll
NNIJnCfI "FlIdliUeII AVllIIIon CiVIl CilbIe Acce91 lincoln City At••e lIgency llll1<:alt'" Co. Nof1tlellSl Sodlll SI1....t Unemployment 8an1Ulry OlGYolopment Grants- Revilnue JoI> Training Spedai
~ Improvem""t~~~~-2"~~~~~Compen_~_~_~~~~~..-.-!!!!!L-

ASSETS

CaII/l Held By City Tre_,,,, $ 1,091,624 51,1M 413 25,241 v:m 441,459 239,376 145,223 540,446 509,046 75,393 472,452 9,550 60,831 40,133 171,191 3,005,217 4,252,446

Caoh On HIncl And I'l Qln., _n1>\ 6,138 26,360 32,515 34,_

I'lYHU'l'\4lIlIl(AtCos!l 100,000 299,soo 7,055,6'6 2,040.922 9,495,038 9,955,974

~:

T_ 5,V6 5OIl,014 119,620 143,544 400 777,854 571,756

I\ccllunll 1,576 5,539 6,lISO 4,716 100 6,100 97,721 15,713 7,749 27,000 173,594 87,579

I\lX:IUlldl'llefllfll 5,_ 3,316 5 85 12,706 2,655 1,233 2,605 3,738 147,205 2,725 5 233 348 37,616 220,663 185,655

Due Ff'Offt Qln", fundS 67,566 1,926 59 045 4,800 204,726 14,_ 31,123 109,540 3,837 31,_ 56 2,514 30 3,_ 558,707 700,502

Due From 0Itl<If G<Mlmments 22,ml 77,540 25 174,222 602,354 46,360 62,445 1,157,537 1,270.536

1""""- 20,280 20,280 45,400
I'lltlilment Pu_lIgr--.e<'lI

W\1tI~County 110309 110309 121,123
TOIaI_llI $ 1,257,181 156,432 8,753 46,042 344,637 1,326,371 246$1 339'- 693,89& 77iS66 8,265;2& 507,073 61~ 116,970 44,2llO 62,445 2,27&,961 16,461,017 17,2il60143

()\ UAi!IIUlD NolO RmD BAI.AMCE

~

204,451 3,695,235 2,779,803
20,280 45,400

2S4
1,832

2S3,2S0

27,061
9,868

14,342

29,263
36,578

4,793

203,393

71,179 116,634
156,907 125,735
2ll6,312 235,935
946,715 1,438,085

30
289,321 310,056

804 115,409
46,338 11174 2603 437,372 419944

116970 62445 257939 2200640 2761800

10,538
15,230
10,214

81,344

211,207
46.2111

553.757

3,186,257
20,280

815
70,881

54,t159

9,608
3,103

367

32
23,865
04,420
25.818

30,256

26,815
35,9IIll
12,267

33,575

71,147

65,872

58.742
375
30

177,394

"I

1,180
3,454

875

30,646

198

57,268
804

4543 98 821 46,575 122920 4,595 4220 77 679 ~

57268 198 9852 406509 121446 256873 17671 130,555 707M4 ~

lI_U",,:
~Payllllle

I\ccllun1lIPayllIlIe
~lIIIllIU"

Due ToQln., FundI
Due To Oller aov",nments
De!eo't'GdReveroes
UneamedNNIl'ICe
I'a:;tued Componsalll(l At>unces

TolliIIlIlII:lilllles
FundBallll1CllS:

ReMf"lldF",:
Ena>mbflll'lC8l_III

Un,~:

DesilF'ated F'" SubsGqUent Yen
ExpendMes 15,000 1,727 90,024 17,994 52,761 1,552 400,047 ',"',465 95,000 2,115,570 5,262,137

~~~e._ ~ ~g:~~ ~5i; :~ ;;:~ ~'~ ~~= 1~= 53:~ :;:':~~ ::~:rn ~,::~;: 5O~,g;~ :~ ~ (203c193l ~'= ~'~~g~~ 1::~~~"; 1:~~:~
TollRl lIlIllllUes .. Fund e._III i 1,257,181 156,432 6,7S3 46,042 344,637 1,326,371246,351 339,_ 693,89& 772,566 8,2os.208 507,073 61 54~!l9O 116,970 ..,2llO 62,445 2,276,961 16,461,017 17,2Oll, 143



B,2

CITY Of UNCOLN, HE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988

With Comparative Totals For August 31,1987

Athletic Field Lincoln ltncolnl COIT1'llUnily Td.
Advance a Facitilies " ...aIi..... Civil Cable Access lincoln Cly M,a Aqen::y lancalller Co. Northeasl Social Slreel Unemployment Soary De1IeIopmenI Grants· Rewnue Job Trairirg Special
~~~OeIense ~~---2~~ Rda! Security Constructi..... Compensation Dilllricl~_~~~Asaessmenl..!..~~

891,800 1,538,802- 518,109 -669;i!97-~ 8,6!iG,3S0 32,055-~- 74 2,486,023 1,!'97,418 4,680 754,305 _~.6012(t7111.4S4 20,090,318

140,000

Aewnues:
Real Estate Ard Pers"",,1 Property Tax
Mol... Vehicle Tax
1nI~a!

Permils Ard Fees
lnIeresl
Cliem Cortribulions
Aenlallncome
Progrllmtncome
MisclIlLloneous
Developers Slvlre 01 Dislric::Is

Telal Aevenles

2,107,428
243,249

97,640 251,954

76,216 11,1sa 59 550 30,549 32,471

333,632 69,067 346 54,632

409.848 8O.22S 59 96.635 30,549 2,689,734

688,451

188,605

14,744

959,222
482,674

14,545

82,361

445,159

31,510

39,802

1,638

561,555
65,180

42,562

7,422,419
126,667
515,299

628,975

32,055 61

13

2,275,688

3,039

163,730
42,566

1.'120,887

139,873

36,668

2,ll10

1,870

754,305

3,114,142 2,947,813
306,429 304,784

13,870.566 12,757,360
609,331 sao,645
932,944 874,557
328.478 287,563

39,002 54,665
163,730 93,4n

78,541 1,346,042 2,1110,702
6.000 6,000 tl~

0"
U1

E"I"""dlures:
General Goverrmenl
PWIIcSolely
Slr_ And Highways
CIIlIufe··Reaeali.....
Eccnomic: O\:lpoIlunily
HedhArdWellate

TCIIllll Expendilures

160,674 1,184 79,417 227,030 837,239 10,006 21,279 31,OM 1,417.963 1,466,001
159,075 1126,941 286,016 149,961

2,13a,!iGO 1164,802 2,303.732 2,153,!iGO
2,8n,4a6 13,!iG5 2,891,421 2,979,252

1,919.836 2,486,023 1,~i42,2S8 754,305 6,201,422 5,319,400
3.232,304 1,006 "183,604 3,616,954 _3,~632

1606~ 1184 IslHl75 ~28n4116- 1,919636 3-232.304 2i7036--83723g-2fjjjt06~~--10:0ss 1006 2,486023 1.7'52819 754305 8108<1 1671751815572,376

495,074

143,5n 4.,000,946 4,517,942

(679,712) (264,308)

4,600

(57,320)

156,401 460,435 3,773,478 3,535,191
(62,000) (1,283,664) (8,0311,732) (7,5sa,059)

155,401 (62,000) (823,229» (4,2G5,2S4) (4,022,868)

(155,401)(982)

(982)

21,999

21,999474,549

3a8,600
(6,468,471)
(6,079,871)

(10,288) 291,079 (167,942)(92,406)

(4a,8Ga) (187,752) (1,023,03G) (1,693,502) 291,079 (167,942) 6,554,420

(48,868) (111,608)(1,125) (16,528)

(1,125) (60,540)ao,22S

(14,447)

50,193 100,000 935,630 1,6ll3,214
(99,863) (94,61~1~ (6186) (23 856)

249,174
ElICess (Detidency) 01 Revenues

OYer EJlperdiIures

OIher FiNrcing Sources (Uses):
Operiillng TUNIenlIn
Operallng Tr.....1enI Oul

TClilal OIher Frnarcing Sources (Uses)

ElICess (Delclency) 01 Revenues Ard
OIher Finan::1ng Sources Over
Expendil ures Ard OIher
Frnanclng Uses 149,291

Fund BallIfICe 8egiming 01 Year
As Pl'8¥iou1lly AepoIted 1,050,622 170,631 1,878 55518 393 505 1031470 217,311 93,409 386,146 009,953 6,942,391 486,074 1,043 101,608 2,698,734 14,444,343 10,865,154

Pric<PeriodAdjuslmenl 3,064,115

Fund Balan::o Beginning O! Y01/1I

As FlesIaIed 1,050,622 170,631_ 2§l~ 55 518 3!iG 505 1 031 470 217,311 93,409 386,146 309,953 6,942,391 486,074 1,043 101,608 2,696,734 14,444,343 13,949,269

Aeoidual Eq.ily Translenlln 80,342 00,342

Fund 8a11nces End 01 Year S 1,199,913 155,234 6,753 38,990 344,637 919,862 124,905 83,121 676,225 642,011 7,497,232 507,073 61 44,288 2,019,022 14,260,377 14,444,343



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
ADVANCE ACQUISITION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

B-3

Revenues:
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures -- General Government:
Other Services And Charges
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Uses -­
Operating Transfers Out

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues Over
Expenditures And Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year

Fund Balance End Of Year

Budget

$
150,000

150,000

170,000

170,000

(20,000)

(212,500)

(232,500)

875,718

$ ===6:::4=:3:=,2:::18==

66

Actual

58,584
329,529

388,113

476
160,215

160,691

227,422

(99,883)
) .

875,718

1,003,257

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

58,584

(476)

9,309

247,422

360,039

360,039



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
AVIATION PROMOTION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

8-4

Variance
Favorable

BUdget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Real Estate And Personal Property Tax $ 41 41
Interest 2,500 553 (1,947)

Total Revenues 2,500 594 (1,906)

Expenditures -- General Government --
Other Services And Charges 15,000 1,184 13,816

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (12,500) (590) 11,910

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 16,724 16,724

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 4,224 1 ~ 1~A i i Oi n
I v, Iy"" I l,ylV
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
CIVIL DEFENSE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
LINCOLN CITY LIBRARIES FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

B-6

Variance
Favorable

Budget /\,..+...... 1 I' I ...~"""......""l-.I,..\
,",vLUQI \VIIIQVVIQUI~1

Revenues:
Taxes:

Real Estate And Personal Property $ 1,916,742 2,094,002 177,260
Motor Vehicle 189,330 243,376 54,046

Intergovernmental 257,702 251,954 (5,748)
Interest 62,000 39,703 (22,297)
Miscellaneous 49,100 62,688 13,588

Total Revenues 2,474,874 2,691,723 216,849

Expenditures -- Culture And Recreation:
Personal Services 1,881,439 1,875,430 6,009
Materials And Supplies 68,721 58,807 9,914
Other Services And Charges 425,145 431,071 (5,926)
Capital. Outlay 500,032 502,455 (2,423)

Total Expenditures 2,875,337 2,867,763 7,574

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (400,463) (i 76,040) 224,423

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In 100,000 100,000
Operating Transfers Out (30,900) (23,856) 7,044

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (30,900) 76,144 107,044

Excess Of Expenditures And Other Financing
Uses Over Revenues And Other Financing
Sources (431,363) (99,896) 331,467

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 680,929 680,929

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 249,566 581 033 331.467
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
LINCOLN AREA AGENCY ON AGING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

B-7

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 755,926 697,244 (58,682)
Client Contributions 223,640 188,886 (34,754)
Miscellaneous 15,785 15,785

Total Revenues 979,566 901,915 (77,651 )

Expenditures -- Economic Opportunity:
Personal Services 1,030,967 1,031,376 (409)
Materials And Supplies 304,368 261,821 42,547
Other Services And Charges 561,841 568,669 (6,828)
Capital Outlay 19,450 27,948 (8,498)

Total Expenditures 1,916,626 1,889,814 26,812

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (937,060) (987,899) (50,839)

Other Financing Sources --
Operating Transfers In 935,630 935,630

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues And
Other Financing Sources (1,430) (52,269) (50,839)

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 245,220 245,220

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 243.790 192,951 (50,839)

70



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
liNCOLN/lANCASTER COUNTY HEALTH FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

B-8

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 1,059,146 931,591 (127,555)
Permits And Fees 534,277 482,309 (51,968)
Interest 12,597 12,597
Miscellaneous 86,004 86,004

Total Revenues 1,593,423 1,512,501 (80,922)

Expenditures -- Health And Welfare:
Personal Services 2,445,890 2,442,427 3,463
Materials And Supplies 121,654 118,795 2,859
Other Services And Charges 599,954 604,907 (4,953)
Capital Outlay 44,370 43,945 425

Total Expenditures 3,211 ,868 3,210,074 1,794

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (1,618,445) (1,697,573) (79,128)

Other Financing Sources --
Operating Transfers In 1,724,065 1,683,214 (40,851)

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures 105,620 (14,359) (119,979)

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 121,409 121,409

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 227,029 107,050 (119,979)
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
NORTHEAST RADIAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

B-9

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Real Estate And Personal Property Tax $ 418,244 418,244
Interest 13,903 13,903
Rentals 73,279 39,802 (33,477)
Miscellaneous 3,538 3,538

Total Revenues 491 ,523 475,487 (16,036)

Expenditures -- General Government:
Personal Services 95,614 95,614
Materials And Supplies 5,765 5,765
Other Services And Charges 123,157 123,157
Capital Outlay 529 529

Total Expenditures 225,065 225,065

Excess Of Revenues Over Expenditures 266,458 250,422 (16,036)

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 243,910 243,910

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 510,368 494,332 (16,036)
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1987

8-10

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Taxes:

Real Estate And Personal Property $ 510,890 558,819 47,929
Motor Vehicle 50,464 64,591 14,127

Interest 47,000 44,083 (2,917)

Total Revenues 608,354 667,493 59,139

Expenditures -- General Government:
Personal Services 26,113 21,195 4,918
Employer's Share Social Security 980,421 810,725 169,696
Other Services And Charges 204 (204)

Total Expenditures 1,006,534 Q':l,) 'I ')A ""7A A" f'\
VV'-,I'--or 1/"'1","'1" I V

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (398,180) (164,631 ) 233,549

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 745,587 745,587

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 347,407 580,956 233,549
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

B-11

Variance
Favorable

Budget J\ .....+...... 1 (Unfavorable)I""\vlUClI

Revenues:
Real Estate And Personal Property Tax $ 18 18
Interest 26,954 26,954

Total Revenues 26,972 26,972

Expenditures -- General Government --
Unemployment Compensation Payments 95,000 10,056 84,944

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues Over (95,000) 16,916 111,916
Expenditures

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 457,853 457,853

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 362,853 474,769 111,916
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CITY LINCOLN, NE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDiTURES,
IN FUND - BUDGET AND ACTUAL LJLIILI'<-.... L-

,FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988
BASIS)

B-12
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OF LINCOLN, NE
GRANTS-IN-AID FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988

Budget

B-13

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Client Contributions
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

$ 1,364,519
140,311

1,544,360

1,364,519
140,311

1,544,360

Expenditures:
General Government:

Materials And Supplies
Other Services And Charges
Capital Outlay

Total General Government

Public Safety:
Personal Services
Materials And Supplies
Other Services And Charges
Capital Outlay

Total Public Safety

Streets And Highways:
Personal Services
Materials And Supplies
Other Services And Charges
Capital Outlay

Total Streets And Highways

Culture And Recreation:
Personal Services
Materials And Supplies
Other Services And Charges

Total Culture And Recreation

13,237 13,237
6,812 6,812

21 ,202 21 ,202

68,144 68,144
426 426

23,610 23,610

118,311 118,311

68,845 68,845
2,323 2,323

85,973 85,973
351 351

157,492 157,492

12,597 12,597
89 89

1,333 1,333

14,019

(Continued)
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
REVENUE SHARING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

B-14

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Interest $ 14,561 14,561
Miscellaneous 1,870

Total Revenues 16,431 16,431

Expenditures --
Culture And Recreation --

Capital Outlay 7,706 (7,706)

Excess Of Revenues Over Expenditures 8,725 8,725

Other Financing Uses --
Operating Transfers Out (62,000) (62,000)

Excess Of Expenditures And Other
Financing Uses Over Revenues (53,275) (53,275)

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 110,513 110,513

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 110,513 57,238 (53,275)
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
JOB TRAINING PROGRAMS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988

B-15

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues -- Intergovernmental $ 885,402 885,402

Expenditures -- Economic Opportunity:
Personal Services 420,449 420,449
Materials And Supplies 3,080 3,080
Other Services And Charges 320,788 320,788

Total Expenditures 744,317 744,317

Excess Of Revenues Over Expenditures 141,085 141,085

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year (177,791 ) (177,791 )

Fund Balance End Of Year $ (36,706) (36.706)
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B-16

CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
STREET CONSTRUCTION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 6,000,000 7,423,511 1,423,511
Permits And Fees 126,730 1
IL4i"",..""II,.., ..........,,~ 424,631 533,987 109,3561'IIII;;:)vI;:;;IICUII;:;;VU;;J

Interest 250,000 473,231

Total Revenues 6,674,631 8,557,459 1,882,828

Expenditures -- Streets And Highways:
Personal Services 1,248,224 1,324,555 (76,331 )
Materials And Supplies 243,170 209,250 33,920
Other Services And Charges 356,280 418,670 (62,390)
Capital Outlay 4,500 2,133 2,367

Total Expenditures 1,852,174 1,954,608 (102,434)

Excess Of Revenues Over Expenditures 4,822,457 6,602,851 1,780,394

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In 388,600 388,600
Operating Transfers Out (7,023,574) (7,120,253) (96,679)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (6,634,974) (6,731,653) (96,679)

Excess Of Expenditures And Other Financing
Uses Over Revenues And Other Financing
Sources (1,812,517) (128,802) 1,683,715

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 7,103,087 7,103,087

Residual Equity Transfer In 80,342 80,342

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 5,290,570 7,054,627 1,764,057
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
ATHLETIC FIELD AND FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
SANITARY DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988

B-18

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Interest $ 1,036 1,036
Miscellaneous 13 13

Total Revenues 1,049 1,049

Expenditures -- Sanitation --
Other Services And Charges 3,331 1,056 2,275

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (3,331 ) (7) 3,324

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year (96,016) (96,016)

Fund Balance End Of Year $ (99,347) (96,023) 3,324
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
CABLE ACCESS TELEVISION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

8-19

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues --
Interest $ 32,564 32,564

Expenditures -- General Government:
Materials And Supplies 447 (447)
Other Services And Charges 43,841 (43,841)
Capital Outlay - Equipment 318,628 25,398 293,230

Total Expenditures 318,628 69,686 248,942

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (318,628) (37,122) ?A1 ~()~__ I ,""'V'V

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 363,921 363,921

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 45,293 326,799 281 ,506
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds - Are established to account for the resources for,
and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and
related costs.

Tax Allocation Projects Debt Service Fund - To accumulate resources for
payment of principal and interest on the 1985 Cornhusker Square tax
allocation bonds and the 1984 Gold's Galleria tax allocation bonds.
Resources are derived from additional taxes generated by the above
properties upon completion of the Redevelopment Projects.

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund - To accumulate resources for
payment of principal and interest on the several general obligation bond
issues outstanding as follows:

1971
1978
1979
1980
1981
1983
1983

1986
1987

Various Purpose Bonds
Storm Sewer Construction Bonds
Swimming Pool Construction Bonds
Storm Sewer Construction Bonds
Transit System Improvement Bonds
Storm Sewer Construction Bonds
Auditorium and Fire Department
Improvement Bonds
Various Purpose Bonds
Downtown Redevelopment Bonds

Capital

Resources are derived from an annual tax levy.

Speciai Assessment Debt Service Fund - To accumulate resources for
payment of principal and interest on the various outstanding special
assessments bond issues. Income is derived from Special Assessment
Tax collections, interest on special assessment taxes and interest from
investments.
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
AUGUST 31, 1988

With Comparative Totals For August 31, 1987

C-1

Tax
Ailocation
Projects Bond

Debt Interest And Special
Service Redemption Assessments

ASSETS

Cash Held By City Treasurer $ 91,640 1,676,748 265,384 2,033,772 2,209,607
Investments (At Amortized Cost) 613,458 9,093,681 39 8,224,237
Receivables:

Taxes 343,051 744,180 1,087,231 535,206
Accrued Interest 16,289 9,622 312,070 337,981 221,122

Due From Other Funds 12,799 495,221 58,267 566,287 690,561
Due From Other Governments 34,780 34,780
Special Assessments Receivable 8,527,352 8,527,352 10,081,026

Total Assets $ 1,077,237 2,960,551 18,256,754 22,294,542 21,990,660

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Bond Principal Payable 5,000 10,000 15,000 15,000
Bond Interest Payable 1,425 10,401 8,331 20,157 19,022
Deferred Revenues 238,332 7,044,225 7,282,557 7,680,226

Total Liabilities 6,425 258,733 7,052,556 7,317,714 7,714,248

Fund Balances:
Reserved For Debt Service 1,070,812 2,701,818 8,495,775 12,268,405 13,122,449
Undesignated 2,708,423 2,708,423 1,153,963

Total Fund Balance 1,070,812 2,701,818 11,204,198 14,976,828 14,276,412

Total Liabilities And Fund Balances $ 1,077,237 2,960,551 18,256,754 22,294,542 21,990,660
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

AUGUST 31, 1988
With Comparative Totals For August 31, 1987

C-2

Tax
A!!oc-ation
Projects Bond

Debt Interest And Special Total
Service Redemption Assessments 1988 1987

Revenues:
Real Estate And Personal Property Tax $ 685,844 3,169,429 3,855,273 3,635,027
Taxes Collected By Others 369,188 369,188 317,379
Intergovernmental 1,476 1,476 1,344
Interest 64,842 110,261 662,355 837,458 546,692
Miscellaneous 9,000
Special Assessments 1,356,218 1,356,218 1,935,204
Special Assessment Interest 1,079,095 1,079,095 1,639,913

Total Revenues 750,686 3,650,354 3,097,668 7,498,708 8,084,559

Expenditures:
Principal Retirement 250,000 1,455,000 1,895,000 3,600,000 15,475,000
Interest 421,100 1,668,280 1,109,804 3,199,184 3,669,401
Fiscal Charges 1,117 8,187 690 9,994 51,044

Total Expenditures 672,217 3,131,467 3,005,494 6,809,178 19,195,445

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over Expenditures 78,469 518,887 92,174 689,530 (11,110,886)

Other Financing Sources:
General Obligation Bond Proceeds 11,802,000

Excess Of Revenues And Other
Financing Sources Over
Expenditures 78,469 518,887 92,174 689,530 691,114

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year
As Previously Reported 992,343 2,172,045 11,112,024 14,276,412 3,162,619

Prior Period Adjustment 10,382,539

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year
As Restated 992,343 2,172,045 11,112,024 14,276,412 13,545,158

Residual Equity Transfers In 10,886 10,886 40,140

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 1,070,812 2,701 98 14,976,828 14,276,412
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CITY Of LINCOLN, NE
DEBT SRVICE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET 'AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

C-3

Tax Allocation Projects Debt Service Bond Interest And RederlJltion Speci~1 Assessments Total
Variance Variance Variance Variance

Favorable Favorable Favorable Favorable
Budget Actu~ ... (Unfavor,~ Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual {UnfavorableJ Budget Actual (Unfavorable)----

Revenues:
Real Estate And Personal Property Tax $ 671,100 410,187 (260,913) 2,913,158 3,063,886 150,728 3,584,258 3,474,073 (110,185)
Taxes Collected By Others 287,754 363,309 75,555 287,754 363,309 75,555
Intergovemmerrtal 1,476 1,476 1,476 1,476
Interest 58,746 58,746 45,000 111,616 66,616 5a1,664 531,664 576,664 702,026 125,362

ro Special Assessments 2,477,178 2,477,178 2,477,178 2,477,178
ro Special Assessment Interest 1,088,095 1,088,095 1,088,095 1,088,095

Total Revenues 671,100 468,933 (202,167) 3,245,911 _3,~,2~~,375 __~Q%~4J096,937 8,013,949 8,106,157 92,208

Expenditures:
Princ~1 Retirement 250,000 250,000 1,485,000 1,455,000 30,000 1,895,000 1,895,000 3,630,000 3,600,000 30,000
Interest 421,100 421,100 1,801,054 1,662,532 138,522 1,122,618 1,114,415 8,203 3,344,772 3,198,047 146,725
Fiscal Charges 1,117 (1,117) 8,187 (8,187) 690 690 690 9,994 (9,304)

Total Expenditures 671,100 672,217 (1,117) 3,286,054 3,125,719 160,335 3,018,308 3,010,105 8,203 6,975,462 6,808,041 167,421

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues Over Expenditures (203,284) (203,284) (40,142) 414,568 454,710 1,078,629 1,086,832 8,203 1,038,487 1,298,116 259,629

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 892,207 892,207 1,836,987 1,836,987 11,112,024 11,112,024 13,841,218 13,841,218

Reswal E~ity Transfer In 10,886 10,886 10,886 10,886

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 892,207 688,923 (203,284) .. JJ96,845 2,262,441 465,596 12,190,653 12,198,856 8,203 14,879,705 15,150,220 270,515



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are established to account for all resources
received and used for the acquisition or development of major capital
improvements (other than those financed by proprietary funds, special
assessments, and trust funds).

Storm Sewer Bond Construction Fund - To account for the cost of
improving and extending storm sewers. Financing is provided by
General Obligation Bond proceeds.

Storm Sewer Construction Fund - account for the cost of improving
and extending the storm sewer system within the City. Financing is
provided through property tax revenue.

Street Construction Fund - To account for the cost of constructing and
improving streets and highways in the City. Financing is prOVided from
Highway Allocation fees.

Vehicle Tax Fund - To account for monies derived from the payment of
wheel tax which is to be used for street improvements in the City.

Sanitary Landfill Purchase and Construction Fund - To account for the
cost of acquiring and preparing a new sanitary landfill site for the City of
Lincoln. Financing is to be provided by General Obligation Bond
proceeds.

Downtown Redeyelopment Project Fund - To account for the cost of
acquiring real property and development within the area included in the
Lincoln Center Retail Revitalization/Redevelopment Project.

Other Capital Project Funds - To account for the cost of acquiring or
improving various general fixed assets. Financing is provided from a
variety of sources, such as General Fund appropriations, Revenue
Sharing, Federal/State grants, bond proceeds, etc.

Special Assessment Capital Projects Fund - To account for the cost of
capital improvements to be assessed against benefitted properties.
Resources are derived from fund transfers from the Special Revenue
fund type and interest on investments.

89



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
AUGUST 31, 1988

With Comparative Totals For August 31,1987

D-1

ASSETS

Storm Sewer
Bond Storm Sewer Street

Construction Construction Construction
~-~- --------

Sanitary
landfill Other

Vehicle Purchase & Downtown Capital Special
~ Construction Redevelopment ..£!rojects Assessments

Totals

1988 _ 1987

Cash Held By City Treasurer
Investments (At Cost)
Receivables:

Accounts
Accrued Interest

Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments

~ Total Assets

LIABILITIES & FUND BAlANCES

$ 326 14,046 403,771 13,499 34,228 465,870 349,976
698,000 1i'8,OOO 1,251,009 400,000 13,146,886 15,673,895 16,049,170

25,900 216,597 76,016 318,513 193,018
991 275 9,851 1,201 291,375 791 304,484 249,208

231 498,460 349 12,802 2,,770 :367,733 251,582 1,133,927 1,717,552
24,444 24,444 203,924

$ 724,891 H8,832 498,460 1,491.852 817.774 13,454,530 503.212 251.582 _J 7~21 ,133 18,762.848

Fund Balances:
Reserved For Encumbrances 191 4,380 613,786 295,867 117,219
Unreserved:

Designated For Subsequent Year's Expenditures 216,022 8,417 216,791
Undesignated 349,733 1'15,645 401,695 13,454,530 (88,958)

Total Fund Balances 565,946 1:28,442 1,015,481 512,658 13,454,530 28,261

Total liabilities And Fund Balances $ 724,891 178,832 498,460 1,491,852 817,774 13,454,530 503,212

Uabitities:
Vouchers Payable
Contracts Payable
Accounts Payable
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenues

Total Liabilities

57,263 46,484 392,211 447,474 293,960 393,859
53 470 263 32,905

82,204 3,436 106,249 28,634 11,156 48,187
19,425

158,945 !50,390 498,460 476,371 305,116 474,951

168,623
237,730 1,868,981 1,365,968

6,974 40,665 59,606
6,878 286,744 859,459

19,425
251,582 2,215,815 2,453,656

1,031,443 634,856

441,230 1,768,810
14,232,645 13,905,526
15,705,318 16,309,192

251,582 17,921,133 18,762,848



D-2

CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988
With ComparativI9 Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, '1987

Sanitary
Storm Sewer Landfill Othor ---~

Bond Storm SeINer Street Vehicle Purchase & Downtown Capital Special
Construction Construction Construction Tax Construction Redevelopment~~ Assessments 1988 1987

Revenues:
Wheel Tax $ 2,335,284 2,335,284 2,260,522
Intergovernmental 325,195 119,275 444,470 166,030
Interest 82,114 12,841 98,470 49,648 834,064 12,910 1,090,047 1,399,473
Donations 48
Miscellaneous 15,570 6 548,786 683,009 1,247,371 212,234

Total Revenues 97,684 12,847 2,758,949 5~8,<l34 834,064 815,194 5,117,172 4,038,307

Expenditures - Capital Outlay:
\.0 Construction Contrads 937,326 253,4<~ 3,987,813 2,533,942 1,799,286 3,266,516 1,283,106 14,061,431 10,812,162
I-' Engineering And Other 114,175 11,985 1,700,341 326,990 471,553 155,208 558 2,780,810 3,244,222

Land Purchases 550,376
Total Expenditures __1,051,501 265,4:27 5,688,154 2,860,932 2,270,839 3,421.,724 1,283,~§4 16,842,241 14,606,760

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over Expenditures (953,817) (252,580) (5,688,154) (101,983) (1,672,405) 834,064 (2,606,530) (1,283,664) (11,725,069) (10,568,453)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In 209,8H3 5,688,154 81,755 1,460,400 2,545,326 1,283,664 11,269,182 8,508,720
Operating Transfers Out (50,000) (6,759) (56,759) (510,028)
Bond Anticipation Note Proceeds 71,000

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 209,8H3 5,688,1~___ .31,755 1,460,400 2,tl~~~§Z 1,283,664 11,212,423 8,069,692

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures And
Other Rnancing Uses (953,817) (42,69'7) (70,228) (212,005) 834,064 (67,963) (512.646) (2,498,761)

Fund Balances Beginning Of Year 1,530,649 171,1~~9 1,166,051 724,663 12,620,466 96,224 16,309,192 18,848,093

Residual Equity Transfers Out (10,886) (80,342) (91,228) (40,140)

Fund Balances End Of Year $ 565,946 128,442 1,015,481 512,658 13,454,530 28,261 15,705,318 16,309,192
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise funds are established to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises where the costs of providing goods or services are recovered
primarily through user charges and where periodic determination of net
income is appropriate.

Parking Lot Revolving Fund - To account for the revenues and expenses
of several metered City-owned parking lots.

GoiT Fund - To account for the revenues and expenses of the three public
adult golf courses and one youth golf course.

Parking Facilities Fund - To account for the revenues and expenses of
two downtown parking garages, the Centrum Parking facility and the
Cornhusker Square parking facility.

Pershing Municipal Auditorium Fund - To account for the revenues and
expenses of the City-owned municipal auditorium.

Sanitary Landfill Revenue Fund - To account for the revenues and
expenses of the City owned landfill.

Lincoln General Hospital Fund - To account for the revenues and
expenses of the City-owned general hospital.

Lincoln Transportation System Fund - To account for the revenues and
expenses of the City-owned transit system.

Lincoln Sanitary Sewer System Fund - To account for the revenues and
expenses of the City-owned wastewater utility.

Lincoln Water System Fund - To account for the revenues and expenses
of the City-owned water utility.

Lincoln Electric System Fund - To account for the revenues and
expenses of the City-owned electric utility.
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E-1

CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
AUGUST 31, 1988

With Comparative Totals For August 31, 1987

Pershing Sanitary lincoln lincoln Lincoln Totals
Parking Lot Parking Municipal landfill Lincoln General Transportation Sanitary Lincoln Electric
Revolving Golf Facilities Auditorium Revenue ~ital System Sewer System Water System System 1988 1987

ASSETS:

Current Assets:
Cash Held By City Treasurer $ 121,518 497,273 177,020 31,481 1,851,036 210,000 1,213,952 465,000 530,000 588,749 5,686,029 4,191,937
Cash On Hand And In Other Accounts 7,617 5,973 20,062 4,404 5,000 23,881 2,100 69,037 1,121,509
Investments (At Cost or Amortized Cost) 93,400 537,696 6,666,000 96,832 59,059,422 66,453,350 66,389,513
Receivables:

Accounts 799 46 32,212 365,850 8,654,000 29,155 788,091 1,889,388 7,883,244 19,642,785 18,276,134
Accrued Interest 5,422 12,321 1,337 9,177 184,000 38,695 250,952 233,263
Unbilled Accounts 644,021 1,661,566 2,150,507 4,456,094 5,196,976

Due From Other Funds 7,434 17,598 14,425 109,995 149,452 75,226
Due From Other Governments 161,871 161,871 318,259
Inventory (At Cost) 71,689 9,174 830,000 367,779 63,424 690,907 1,577,005 3,609,978 3,729,602
Plant Operation Assets 3,783,328 3,783,328 4,699,773
Prepaid Expenses 72 793,000 11,826 7,629 19,720 272,149 1,104,396 1,072,689

\.0 Reimbursements From Third Party Payors 57,000
(j'\ Unamortized Bond Issuance Expense 43,358 122,541 153,311 319,210 347,963

Deferred Charges 601,000 601,000 624,356
Total Current Assets 228,573 1,144,240 242,113 93,001 2,340,462 17,943,000 1,943,991 2,090,706 4,946,992 75,314,404 106,287,482 106,334,200

Other Assets:
Deferred Charges And Other Assets 19,820,044 19,820,044 18,794,808
Advance Payments On Nudear Fuel 4,017,284 4,017,284 5,173,555

Total Other Assets 23,837,328 23,837,328 23,968,363
Restricted Assam:

Cash 211,194 7,636 34,000 1,288,027 3,056,414 10,014 4,607,285 3,096,029
Cash On Hand And In Other Accounts 932 932 2,684
Investments (At Cost or Amortized Cost) 1,712,748 3,281,000 6,404,063 9,667,052 31,045,879 52,110,742 50,804,919
Accrued Interest Receivable 726 42,000 170,005 240,182 452,913 414,669
Due From Other Funds 8,726 8,726 3,800

Total Restricted Assets 221,578 1,720,384 _ ..~~_~~-!OOO 7,862,095 12,963,648 31,055,893 57,180,598 54,322,101
Property, Plant, And Equipment

land 12,472 670,800 1,246,730 46,500 896,274 1,678,000 102,020 2,008,490 3,598,828 10,260,114 10,030,428
Buildings 738,796 7,414,518 2,933,427 35,090 27,201,000 1,913,093 21,688,739 23,507,349 85,432,012 84,007,002
Improvements Other Than BUildings 309,097 1,288,869 39,256 41,989 1,776,000 301,834 55,380,855 59,137,900 118,410,634
Machinery And EqUipment 561,225 137,750 692,434 1,187,711 9,556,000 7,222,962 2,810,284 65,725,743 87,894,109 22,429,447
Utility Plant 350,435,246 350,435,246 343,022,983
Construction In Progress 427,227 1,565,338 3,342,571 3,036,100 13,122,587 21,493,823 15,021,188

Total 321,569 3,686,917 8,798,998 3,711,617 3,726,402 40,211,000 9,539,909 85,230,939 95,868,020 363,557,833 614,653,204 592,921,682
less Accumulated Depreciation (29,455) (818,819) (1,661,307) (2,339,999) (633,595) \15,404,000) (4,319,402) (21,886,805) (24,912,737) (75,337,607) (147,343,726) (133,296,524)

Net Property, Plan~ And Equipment 292,114 2,868,098 7,137,691 1,371,618 3,092,807 24,807,000 5,220,507 63,344,134 70,955,283 288,220,226 467,309,4 78 459,625,158
Total Assets $ 520,687 4,233,916 9,100,188 1,464,619 5,433,269 46,107,000 7,164,498 73,296,935 88,865,923 418,427,851 654,614,886 644,249,822

(continued)



(ENTERPRISE FUNDS, Continued) E-1

Pershing Sanitary lincoln lincoln lincoln ___ Totals

Parking Lot Parking Municipal Landfill Lincoln General Transportation sanitary Lincoln Electric
Revolving Golf Facilities A.uditorium Revenue Hospital System Sewer System Water System System 1988 1987

LIABIlITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities (Payable From

Current Assets):
Vouchers Payable $ 4,393
Accounts Payable 1,228 46,369 10,968 28,499 10,823 1,290,000 1,491,241 89,921 233,628 4,491,608 7,694,285 9,331,109
Accrued Liabilities 16,558 28,211 12,537 3,091,000 101,701 150,139 204,506 4,336,228 7,940,880 7,278,906
Due To Other Funds 4,887 14,546 19,433 8,161
Notes Payable 5,000,000
Accrued Compensated Absences 38,286 21,240 30,105 138,536 213,164 290,726 732,057 691,906
Obligations Under Capital Leases 136,067 136.067 126,388
Contracts 562,000 562.000
Other 2,779 565,000 87,029 1,382,379 2,037,187 1,682,082

Total Current liabilities (Payable
From Current Assets) 1,228 106,100 10,968 80,729 204,078 5,508,000 1,818,507 453.224 728.860 10.210.215 19,121,909 24,122,945

Current liabilities (Payable From
Restricted Assets):
Construction Contracts 297,738 8,000 383,037 353,871 1,042,646 142,213
Accrued Interest 60,749 109,574 204,624 6,294,615 6,669,562 5,963,058
Fuel Credit Obligation Notes 590,000 590,000 755,000
Current Portion Of Revenue Bonds 130,000 145,000 655,000 925,000 5,555,000 7,410,000 5,290,000
Accreted Interest On Capital

Appreciation Bonds 1,274,756 1,274,756

\..0 Total Current Liabilities (Payable
....,J From Restricted Assets) 297,738 190,749 153,000 1,147,611 1,48:3,495 13.714,371 16,986,954 12,150,271

Long Term liabilities:
Due To Plan Members 946,132 946,132 680.560
Deferred Credits And Other 144,163 144,163 378,379
Fuel Credit Obligation Notes (Net Of

Current Portion) 1,365,000 1,365,000 1,955,000
Revenue Bonds (Net Of Current Portion) 3,180,000 18,585,000 9,085,000 11,65!5,ooo 305,001,723 347,506,723 357,786,723
Obligations Under Capital Leases 23,666 23,666 159,732

Total Long Term Liabilities 3,180,000 23,666 18,585,000 9,085,000 11,655,000 307,457,018 349,985,684 360,960,394
Total Liabilities 1,228 403,838 3,381,717 80,729 227,744 24,246,000 1,818,507 10,685,835 13,867,355 331,381,604 386,094,557 397,233,610

Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital 2,400 223,490 3,625,129 1,341,891 2,048,045 5,345,991 32,826,640 18,135,713 63,549,299 62,453,499
Retained Earnings:

Reserved For:
Debt Service 1,640,650 4,383,483 8,77B,062 14,802,'195 10,452,940
Improvements 47,376 2,331,001 2,70~!,091 5,080,468 6,247,471
Restricted Funds 17,341,522 17,341,522 15,779,892

Unreserved 517,059 3,559,212 452,692 41,999 3,157,480 23,069,976 45,38~~, 702 69,704,725 145,885,1345 131,327,495
Fund Balances:

Reserved For:
Improvements 3,209,000 3,209,000 3,263,152
Restricted Funds 148,000 148,000 146,849

Unreserved 18,504,000 18,504,000 17,344,914
Total Retained Earningsl

Fund Balances 517,059 3,606,588 2,093,342 41,999 3,157,480 21,861,000 29,784,460 56,862,855 87,046,247 204,971,030 184,562,713
Total Fund Equity 519,459 3,830,078 5,718,471 1,,383,890 5,205,525 21,861,000 5,345,991 62,611,100 74,998~568 87,046,247 268,520,329 247,016,212

Total Liabilities And Fund Equity $ 520,687 4,233,916 9,100,188 1,464,619 5,433,269 46,107,000 7,164,498 73,296,935 88,865,923 418,427,851 654,f)14,88L 644,249,822
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNilNGS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, '1988

With Comparative Totals For August 31, 1987

Pershing Sanitary Lincoln Lincoln Lincoln Totals------
Parking Lot Parking Municipal Landfill Lincoln General Transportation Sanitary Lincoln Electric
Revolving Golf ~cili~ Auditorium Revenue Hospital System Sewer SystElDl Water System System 1988 1987

Operating Revenues:
Charges For Services $ 37,733,000 936,415 8,439,525 13,528,917 98,898,970 159,536,827 149,043,189

Fees 1,101,909 2,331,207 3,43~l,116 3,131,043

Parking Facility Revenue 73,417 943,764 1,017,181 948,675

Performance Revenue 1,075,146 1,075,146 1,074,765

Other Operating Revenue 317,088 931,000 181,554 1,429,642 1,344,394

Total Operating Revenue 73,417 1,101,909 943,764 1,392,234 2,331,207 38,664,000 936,415 8,439,525 13,710,471 98,898,970 166,491,912 155,542,066

Operating Expenses:
Personal Services 469 427,862 486,161 360,299 19,481,000 2,745,906 23,501,697 20,972,195

Contradual Services 367,478 793,385 314,083 1,474,946 1,413,005

Operation And Maintenance 15,870 458,969 364,248 371,493 14,661,000 1,011,914 3,802,052 3,9~9,505 5,367,335 30,002,386 27,187,027

Purchased Power 49,581,374 49,581,374 50,365,019

Depreciation 17,673 87,655 208,422 142,990 175,267 2,094,000 664,062 1,768,939 1,710,775 10,486,141 17,353,924 16,782,396

Payments In Lieu Of Taxes 4,194,062 4,194,062 4,084,301

1..0 Administrative 940,479 1,341,948 6,664,970 8,947',397 8,155,371
1..0 Total Operating Expenses 34,012 974,486 575,900 1,786,784 907,059 36,236,000 4,735,965 6,509,470 7,002,228 76,293,882 135,055,786 128,959,314

Operating Income (Loss) 39,405 127,423 367,864 (394,550) 1,424,148 2,428,000 (3,799,550) 1,930,055 6,708,243 22,605,088 31,436,126 26,582,752

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest 12,861 77,322 125,396 114,736 771,000 21,655 604,455 779,543 6,065,580 8,572,548 7,582,208

Gain (Loss) On Disposal Of Assets (3,480) (434) (41,000) 2,596 137 (42,181) 5,439,053

Operating Grants 1,612,576 1,612,576 765,979

Amortization Of Deferred Charges (2,891) (24,000) (13,363) (12,508) (2,111,674) (2,164,456) (2,006,173)

Donations 71,000 71,000 71,843

Interest And Fiscal Charges (279,149) (17,157) (2,099,000) (443,587) (845,249) (19,082,462) (22,766,604) (25,667,296)

Miscellaneous 22,520 8,285 38,842 69,647 1,781,047
Total Non-Operating Revenues

(Expenses) 12,861 73,842 (156,644) (434) 97,579 (1,322,000) 1,656,751 158,3~39,235) (15,128,556) (14,647,470) (12,033,339)

Net Income Beforf pperating Transfers 52,266 201,265 _?11,220 _~,~L 1,-521,727 1,106,000 (2,142,799) 2,088,421 6,~59,008 7,476,532 16,788,656 14,549,413

Other Financing Sources --
Operating Transfers In 295,121 21,600 1,478,737 1,795,458 2,465,364

Net Income (Loss) 52,266 201,265 211,220 (99,863) 1,543,327 1,106,000 (664,062) 2,088,421 6,6139,008 7,476,532 18,584,114 17,014,777

Depreciation Transfer On Contributed
Capital 1,307 111,015 133,060 7,365 664,062 617,927 289,382 1,824,118 1,702,030

Increase (Decrease) In Retained Earnings 52,266 202,572 322,235 33,197 1,550,692 1,106,000 2,706,348 6,958,390 7,476,532 20,408,232 18,716,807

Retained EarningsJfund Balance Beginning
Of Year 464,793 3,404,016 1,771,107 8,802 1,606,788 20,755,000 27,078,112 49,904,465 79,569,715 184,562,798 165,845,991

Retained EarningsJfund Balance End Of Year $ 517,059 3,606,588 2,093,342 41,999 3,157,480 21,861,000 29,784,460 56,8f;2,855 87,046,247 204,971,030 184,562,798



CITY Of LINCOLN, NE
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988

Willh Comparative Totals For August 31, 1987
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CASH flOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Excess 01 Revenues Over Expenses
Adjustments To Reconcile Net Income To Net Cash

Provided By Operating Activities:
loss (Galn) On Sale 01 Equipment
Depreciation And Amortization
Allowance For Funds Used
Premium And Discount Amortization
(Increase) Decrease In Current Assets:

Accounts Re09ivable
Unbilled Revenues

I-' Accrued Interest Re09ivable
o Other ReceivliDles
o Due From Other Funds

Other Assets
Inventories
Plant Operation Assets
Due From Other Governments
Assets Whose Use Is Restricted By Board
Prepaid Expenses
Reimbursement From Third Party Payors

Increase (Decrease) In Current liabilities:
Vouchers Payable
Accounts Payable
Accrued Interest
Accrued Liabilities
Due To Other Funds
Accrued Compensated Absences
Accrual In Lieu 01 Tax
Contracts Payable
Overpayment From Third Party Payors
Other

Decrease (increase) In Restricted Assets

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided From (Used In) Operating

Activities, Carried Forward

Pershing Sanitary Lincoln Lincoln Lincoln
Parking lot Paming Mu~ Landfill Uncoln General Transportation Sanitary Lincoln Electric Totals
Revolving Goll Facilities Audleorium Revenue H~ System Sewer System Water System System 1988 1987

$ 52,266 201,265 211,220 (99,863) 1,543,327 1,106,000 (664,062) '!,088,421 6,669,008 7,476,532 18,584,114 17,014,777

3,480 434 41,000 (2,596) (137) 42,181 (5,439,053)
17,673 87,655 211,313 142,990 175,267 2,118,000 664,062 '1,780,322 1,723,283 12.597.815 19,518,380 18,964,035

(121,923) (121,923) (178,358)
597,265 597,265

362 5,511 5,027 (29,828) (57,615) (1,344,000) (11,376) 20,977 (259,359) 414,349 (1,255,952) 413,702
101,859 (226,497) 865,520 740,882

(4,651) 8,296 (576) (4,741) (2,000) 16,354 12,682 (64,091)
(112,000) (112,000)

3,670 (4,948) (6,595) (71,279) (79,152) (38,466)
(1,923,897) (1,923,897)

(32,430) 1,027 (150,000) (24,311) 14,249 150,455 160,314 119,304 25,719
916,445 916,445 2,003,405

156,388 156,388 (308,773)
(171,553) (171,553)

144 (8,000) (1,136) 310 (197) (22,223) (31,102) (647,622)
57,000 57,000 (57,000)

1,128 (2.274) (951) (1,168) (3,265) (72)
2,542 4,777 4,973 (11,320) 205,000 (517,405) (101,826) (104,412) (1,112,520) (1,630,191) 844,074

708,583 708,583 (1,933,075)
3,857 13,596 2,547 481,000 20,165 30,255 35,802 587,222 350,942

(697) 11,969 11,272 (4,984)
5,043 (402) 1,489 913 19,711 13,397 40,151 (9,849)

75,024 75,024
297,738 297,738

241,000 241,000 (92,000)
(151) 13,403 1,472,146 1,485,398 (799,778)

__ -R54.133} 190,000 (164.133) (1,387,270)

18,182 373,773 (140,181) 131,832 45,149 1,545,441 317,057 1,863,261 1,332,335 14,626,898 20,113,747 11,641,486

70,448 515,038 ;r1,033 31,969 1,588,476 2,651,441 ._{34JjlQ§L__3,951,682 8,001,343 22,103,430 38,691,861 28,656,263

(continued)



(ENTERPRISE FUNDS, Continued)

CASH flOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Parking lot
Revolving Golf

Parking
Facilitie's

Pershing
Municipal

Auditorium

Sanitary lincoln
landfill Lincoln G,eneral Transportation

Revenue ~~~

lincoln lincoln
Sanitary lincoln Electric

Sewer System W~lter System System 1988

E·3

Totals
1987

I-'
o
I-'

Proceeds From Contract Used To Purchase Equipment
Proceeds From Issuance Of Revenue Bonds
Proceeds From Sale Of Investments
Proceeds From Sale 01 Fixed Assets
Payments For Purchase Of Investments
Additions To Fixed Assets
Additions To Contributed Capital
Decrease (Increase) To Current Liabilities Payall9

From Restricted Assets
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing

Activities

CASH flOWS FROM fiNANCING ACTIVITIES:

56:2,000 562,000

24.224 2.093,032 28,06!i,OOO 171,419 11,007.445 10,782.644 134.898,211 187,041,975
475 7'7.000 (473,393) (395.918)

(117.624) (1 ,888,683) (28.365,000) (185.787) (10.099.158) (1:3,634,356) (134,450,582) (188,741.190)
(488,651) (59,217) (2,016,794) (2,8341~,OOO) (320,806) (4,692,239) (4,025,783) (10,247,266) (24,684,756)

46,737 1,292,651 334,021 360,861 885,653 2.919,923

(l,3!:i3) 365.013 228,956 592.616

(93,400) (283,827) (1.3!:i3) (12.480) (724,143) (2,495,,000) (L1~L~58,QZllL _C~62,8~ _ {10.2Z3,030J (22,705.350)

93,191,904
206,115,823

23,336,413
(240,871,998)

(20,130,248)
2,731,472

708.807

65.082,173

(120,OCiO) (126,387) (135.000) (605.000)

Repayments Of Long Term Debt
Defeasance 01 Long-Term Debt
Installment Payments On Capital Leases

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities

(120,000)

(126.387)

(13S.000) (605,000) (890,000) (12.165,000) (13,915.000) (13,895.000)
(80,325,000)

(126,38lJ (30,167)
(890,000) (12.165,000) (14,041,387L{~250,167)

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash
Cash Beginning Of Year
Cash End Of Year $

(22,952)
144,470
121,518

291,211
425,805
717,016

(50,3~!O)

240.949
190,62~9

19,489
32,054
51,543

737.946
1.117,494
1,855,440

21,447
227',553
249'.000

(348,158)
1,585,991
1,237,833

288,604
1,464.423
1,753,027

11,348,457
'!,240,057
:1,588.514

(334,600) 1,951,124 (511,731)
933,363 8,412,159 8,923,890
598,763 10,363,283 8,412,159
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are established to account for the financina of
goods or services rendered by one department or agency to other
departments or agencies or to other governmental units on a cost­
reimbursement basis.

Data Processing Fund - To account for the cost of operating a central
data processing facility for the City of Lincoln and Lancaster County.
User City and County departments are charged for the resources used.
Resources used are billed at cost plus an administrative overhead.

Engineering Revolying Fund - To account for the cost of operating a
central engineering pool. Revenues are derived from billings to various
capital improvement projects.

Insurance Revolving Fund - To account for the cost of providing a sel1­
insurance program for workers' compensation, liability, and property
insurance. Revenues are derived from billings to operating departments.

Public Works Equipment Management Fu nd - To account for the
operation of a centralized maintenance facility for equipment used by
other City departments, such as autos, trucks, heavy equipment, and
miscellaneous other equipment. Revenue is derived from billings to user
departments.

Police Garage Fund - To account for the operation of a maintenance
facility for the Police fleet. Revenue is derived from billings to the Police
Department.

Print Services Reyolving Fund - To account for the operation of a
centralized print shop. Revenues are derived from bi llings to user
departments.

Stores Revolving Fund - To account for the operation of a centralized
office supply facility. Revenues are derived from billings to user
departments.
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
AUGUST 31, 1988

With Comparative Totals For August 31,1987

Public Works Print Stores Totals
Data Engiineering Insurance Equipment Police Services Revolving

Processing Revolving Revolving Management Garage Revolving System 1988 1987

ASSE.TS

Current Assets:
Cash Held By City Treasurer $ 491,910 236,285 154,419 2,162,862 685,258 41,645 66,633 3,839,012 4,503,570

Investments (At Cost) 1,968,065 1,968,065 1,483,994
Receivables:

Accounts 96,788 91,328 7,340 41,285 5,824 9,264 157 251,986 177,754
Accrued Interest 731 1,856 72,553 15,617 4,140 234 458 95,589 51,681

Due From Other Funds 90,621 :264,753 41,369 415,815 122,421 37,167 6,671 978,817 762,535
Due From Other Governments 235,273 4,625 1,312 241,210 228,215
Inventories 230,967 40,945 11,090 8,998 292,000 289,250

Tatal Current Assets $ 915,323 594,222 2,243,746 2,866,546 858,588 104,025 84,229 7,666,679 7,496,999

Fixed Assets 2,879,887 :361,572 14,722 7,326,248 2,167,064 273,003 13,022,496 11,744,677

I-' less Accumulated Depreciation (1,956,631) (:210,575) (11,558) (4,197,533) (1,341,854) ('185,931) (7,904,082) (7,214,519)
0 Net Fixed Assets 923,256 150,997 3,164 3,128,715 825,210 87,072 5,118,414 4,530,158
~ Total Assets 1,838,579 745,219 2,246,910 5,995,261 1,683,798 191,097 84,229 12,785,093 12,027,157

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Vouchers Payable 118 118 34,439
Accounts Payable 31,248 19,774 35,149 67,826 17,078 9,568 1,619 182,262 263,757
Accrued liabilities 32,510 80,056 3,747 28,228 10,682 5,308 336 160,867 122,233
Due To Other Funds 5,635 21,849 617 4,021 1,645 658 89 34,514 107,174
Accrued Compensated Absences 53,493 201,635 4,762 80,523 45,060 3,046 832 389,351 361,846
Claims 1,180,705 1,180,705 240,632
Obligations Under Capital leases 288,227 288,227 455,207

Total Current liabilities 411,113 323,314 1,224,980 180,716 74,465 18,580 2,876 2,236,044 1,585,288

long Term liabilities:
Claims 1,793,715 1,793,715 569,016
Obligations Under Capital leases 8,606 8,606 296,833

Total liabilities 419,719 323,314 3,018,695 180,716 74,465 18,580 2,876 4,038,365 2,451,137

Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital 97,462 1,373,905 97,580 1,568,947 1,584,822
Retained EamingslUnreserved 1,321,398 421,905 (771,785) 4,440,640 1,511,753 172,517 81,353 7,177,781 7,991,198

Total Fund Eql!ity 1,418,860 421,905 (771,78S) 5,814,545 1,609,333 172,517 81,353 8,746,728 9,576,020

Total Liabilities And Fund Equity $ 1,838,579 '745,219 2,246,910 5,995,261 1,683,798 191,097 84,229 12,785,093 12,027,157



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988
With Comparativl9 totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1987

F-2

Public Works Print Stores Totals
Data Engineefing Insurance Equipment Police Services Revolving

Processing ~!!!L Revolving Management Garage Revolving System 1988 1987

Operating Revenues:
Charges For Services $ 3,477,462 3,276,670 1,612,671 2,207,413 898,858 315,234 132,947 11,921,2551 11,171,997

Operating Expenses:
Personal Services 955,446 2,376,138 104,328 820,429 322,148 113,302 11,898 4,703,6891 4,504,918
Supplies And Materials 101,485 38,155 19,889 814,747 213,083 100,865 32,930 1,321,154 1,421,448
Other Services And Charges 1,436,309 791,150 3,332,093 324,867 115,488 62,606 97,214 6,159,727 4,501,962
Depreciation 429,315 25,774 1,370 512,530 293,047 24,927 1,286,963, 1,295,508

Total Operating Expenses 2,922,555 3,231,:217 3,457,680 2,472,573 943,766 301,700 142,042 13,471,533 11,723,836
l-'
0 Operating Income (loss) 554,907 45,453 (1,845,O09) (265,160) (44,908) 13,534 (9,095) (1,550,278) (551,839)U1

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest 11,190 21,106 153,652 181,277 47,675 2,481 5,487 422,868 334,523
Contributions From Stores Revolving 144,561
Interest And Fiscal Charges (49,056) (49,056) (98,414)
Miscellaneous 1,023 22,927 (7,728) 16,222 (12,280)

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (36,843) 21,106 153,652 204,204 39,947 2,481 5,487 390,034 368,390

Net Income (loss) 518,064 66,559 (1,691,357) (60,956) (4,961 ) 16,015 (3,608) (1,160,244) (183,449)

Depreciation Transfer On Contributed Capital 37,397 295,541 13,889 346,827 323,652

Increase (Decrease} In Retained Earnings 555,461 66)559 (1,691,357} 234,585 8,928 16,015 (3,608) (813,417) 140,203

Retained Earnings Beginning Of Year 765,937 355,:~46 919,572 4,206,055 1,502,825 156,502 84,961 7,991,198 7,995,556

Residual Equity Transfer Out (144,561)

Retained Earnings End Of Year $ 1,321,398 421,~K)5 (771,785) 4,440,640 1,511,753 172,517 81,353 7,177,781 7,991,198



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

With Comparative totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1987
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FIDUCIARY

Pension Trust Funds

The City maintains two retirement funds which account for the receipt,
investment, and distribution of retirement contributions made for the
benefit of police officers and firefighters.

Expendable Trust Funds

Expendable Trust funds are used to account for resources received and
held by the City as trustee and are to be expended in accordance with
the conditions of the respective trust.

Parks and Recreation Special Projects Fund - To account for the
proceeds of various trusts and donations to be used for the development
of various projects, such as a mini-park, an observatory, landscaping, etc.

Commission on Aging Gift Trust Fund - To account for the proceeds of
fund-raising activities by and donations to the Lincoln/Lancaster Senior
Center Foundation. These funds are turned over to the City to be used
for special projects at the discretion of the Foundation.

Library Special Trust Funds - To account for the receipt of investment
earnings from the following trusts:

joseph j. Hompes Trust - To be used to buy books as stipulated
by the trust.

Lillian Polley Trust - To be used for the Polley Music Library.

Agency Funds

Agency funds are used to account for assets held for other funds,
governments, or others.

Collections Due Other Goyernments - To account for the collection and
payment to:

Ai rport Authority ­
State of Nebraska -

taxes collected on its behalf.
sales tax collections on sales made by
the City of Lincoln and to be remitted to
the State.
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Lincoln Public Schools - fines, es, licenses and permits
collected on its behalf.

Contractor Deposits - To account for good faith money deposited with the
City to assure the completion of special projects. The money will be
returned to the contractors upon completion.

Payroll Revolving .. To account for payroll liabilities, such as taxes and
fringes.

Outstanding Warrants - To account for money held by the City to pay
outstanding warrants.

Earnings on Pooled Investments - To account for interest received from
pooled idle fund investments pending distribution to the various City
funds.

Utilities and Telephone Suspense .. To account for receipts from water
and sanitary sewer billings pending distribution to the Water and Sewer
Utility funds and for the accumulation of funds to pay Lancaster County
for the City share of the telephone bill for the County-City building.

Public Office Building Revenue Bonds Fund - To account for rental
payments received from the State of Nebraska as per the following: The
City has assisted the State by issuing revenue bonds on behalf of the
State to build the State ETV Building and the State Game and Parks
Commission Building. The lease and related financing agreements
provide for the State to reimburse the City for debt service and other
costs incurred by the City. The City records the amounts collected and
held under the respective lease agreements in the trust and agency
funds. The City has entered into these lease agreements solely for the
purpose of assisting the State in providing office buildings for use
exclusively by the State and at no greater cost to the State than the cost
thereof to the City. The obligation to retire the revenue bonds is an
obligation of the State and not the City. The State is meeting this
obligation through lease payments.

Undistributed Property Tax - To account for tax collections received from
the County Treasurer pending distribution to the various tax supported
funds.

Deferred Compensation Plan - To account for balances deferred from
employees pay under the City's Section 457 Deferred Compensation
Plan.

108



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
AUGUST 31, 1988

With Comparative Totals For August 31, 1987
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Pension Trust Funds Expendable Trust Funds Agency Funds

Parks And Pub. Off. Bldg.
Recreation Commission Library CoIlec1ions Earnings Utilities And ReverAJe Bonds Deferred Totals

Are Police And Special On Aging Special Due Other Contractor Payroll OutStanding On Pooled Telephone (Stale Of Undistributed Compensation

Pension Rre Pension Projects Gift Trust Trusl Governments DeposIts Revolving Warrants Investments SUspense Nebr. Lessee) Property Tax Plan 1988 1987

ASSETS

Cash Held By City TreaSlXer $ 58.412 71,013 101,427 155,091 370,558 25,639 64,190 670,810 3.640,505 1,681,027 1,570 68,362 2,200,000 9.108,604 9,623,105

Cash In 01her Accounts 4,037 4.037 74,316

Investments (AI Cost Or Amortized Cost) 2,004,613 52,829,671 1,171,326 56,005,610 50,843,127

Receivables:
Taxes 42,616 120,352 162,968 200,274

Acaved Intllfest 32,959 830,662 425 647 1.859 15,781 882,333 806,036

Other 63 744 9,401 333,680 761 344,649 46,513

Due From Other Funds 13.822 58,070 5.091 7,856 21.442 2,917 129,839 2.965 7,561 249,563 383.133

Due From Other Governments 1,140 4,959 6,099 10,874

Insurance Contract 1,757.803 1,757,803 1,860,903

Con1Tac:tor Retalnage 905,635 005,635 744,440

Total Assets $ 2,153,562 53.914,727 107,006 164,338 393,8!S9 37,957 969,825 1.138,366 3,640,505 1.681,027 5,296 1,,263,030 2,200,000 1.757,803 69,427,301 64,592,721

I-'
0
1..0 LiABIlITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 463 520 2!S1 3,726 4,960 348,360

Warrants Payable 3,640,505 3,640,505 2,797,364

Vouchers Payable 2,5:12 2,522 587,816
Acaued Compensated Absences 2,54'>0 2,560 2,064
Acaued Uabllities 1,8:19 303,619 1,570 307,018 283,643
Due To Other Funds 31 1,377,408 7,781 2,200,000 3,585,220 4,432,845
Due To Other Governments 37,957 1,085,250 1,123,207 768,454
Due To Contractor 969.825 969,825 816,338
Due To Plan Members 53,116 1,757,803 1,810,919 1,860,903
Deferred Revenues 13,925 64,699 78,624 95,932
Amount Held Under State Lease

Agreement 1,255,249 1,255,249 1,286,044
Total Uabilities 13,925 64,699 463 551 7,1Ei2 37,~7 _ 96~825_J,~36L~~0,~ .. ~'L.Q?7~. _5-<296_ . 1.:263,030 2,200,000 1,757,803 12,780,609 13,279,763

Fund Balances:
Reserved For:

Employee Retirement 2,139,637 53.850,028 55,989,665 50,811,450
Encumbrances 19,595 2,136 21,731 13,567
Trust Donations 86,948 163,787 384,561 635,296 487,941
Total Fund Balances 2139,637 53850 028 106543 163787 386697 56 646 692 51312,958

Total liabilities And Fund Balances $ 2,153,562 53,914,727 107,006 164,338 393,859 37,957 96~,825 _1,138,?6~ 3,.640,505 1,681,027 5,296 1,:163,030 2,200,000 1,757,803 69,427,301 64,592,721



OF LINCOLN, NE
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988
With Comparative Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1987

Police
Fire And Fire Totai

Pension Pension 1988 1987

Operating Revenues:
Employee Contributions $ 950,426 950,426 903,605
Taxes:

Real Estate And Personal Property 107,888 471,397 579,285 1,113,916
Motor Vehicle 12,862 57,588 70,450 117,729

Interest 199,049 4,797,874 4,996,923 4,597,962
Intergovernmental 48 210 258 506

Total Operating Revenues 319,847 6,277,495 6,597,342 6,733,718

Operating Expenses:
Benefit Payments 292,731 862,962 1,155,693 1,076,587
Refunds 257,633 257,633 233,671
Administrative Costs 5,801 5,801 4,301

Total Operating Expenses 292,731 1,126,396 1,419,127 1,314,559

Net Income 27,116 5,151,099 5,178,215 5,419,159

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 2,112,521 48,698,929 50,811,450 45,392,291

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 2,139,637 53,850,028 55,989,665 50,811,450

110

G-2



CITY LINCOLN, NE
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988

With Comparative Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1987

G-3

Police
Fire And Fire Totals

Pension Pension 1988 1987

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Excess Of Revenues Over Expenses $ 27,116 5,151,099 5,178,215 5,419,159
Adjustments To Reconcile Net Income To Net

Cash Provided By Operating Activities:
(Increase) Decrease In Current Assets:

Taxes Receivable 3,524 33,782 37,306 17,896
Accrued Interest Receivable 694 (76,513) (75,819) (82,650)
Due From Other Funds 17,600 109,307 126,907 (176,703)
Due From Other Governments 576 4,199 4,775 (3,074)

Increase (Decrease) In Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable (4,600)
Due To Other Funds (198)
Deferred Revenues (2,803) (14,505) (17,308) 11,163

Total Adjustments 19,591 56,270 75,861 (238,166)

Net Cash Provided From (Used In)
Operating Activities, Carried Forward 46,707 5,207,369 5,254,076 5,180,993

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds From Sale Of Investments 673,643 13,007,847 13,681,490 13,852,098
Payments For Purchase Of Investments (665,973) (18,184,406) (18,850,379) (19,073,374)

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities 7,670 (5,176,559) (5,168,889) (5,221,276)

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash 54,377 30,810 85,187 (40,283)

Cash Beginning Of Year 4,035 40,203 44,238 84,521

Cash End Of Year $ 58,412 71,013 129,425 44,238
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CITY OF NE
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988
With Comparative Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1987

G-4

Parks And
Recreation Commission Library

Special On Aging Special Total
Projects Gift Trust Trust 1988 1987

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 1,662 1,662 2,204
Donations And Gifts 56,666 186,125 98,339 341,130 351,085
Interest 5,112 8,233 21,995 35,340 27,663
Sale Of Concessions 32,748
Miscellaneous 2,500 2,200 4,700 5,828

Total Revenues 65,940 196,558 120,334 382,832 419,528

Expenditures:
Culture And Recreation:

Personal Services 6,166 51,599 57,765 61,685
Supplies And Materials 9,342 188 9,530 23,772
Other Services And Charges 6,607 10,100 16,707 31,109
Construction Contracts 16,148 16,148 44,819
Equipment 5,755 19,027 24,782 143,295

Economic Opportunity:
Supplies And Materials 7,086 "7 n~~ I: "nA

, ,VVy >J,vv....

Other Services And Charges 83,683 83,683 42,632
Equipment 11,612 11,612 294

Total Expenditures 44,018 102,381 80,914 227,313 352,910

Excess Of Revenues Over 21,922 94,177 39,420 155,519 66,618
Expenditures

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 84,621 69,610 347,277 501,508 434,890

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 106,543 163,787 386,697 657,027 501,508
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CITY Of LINCOLN, NE
AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

G-5

Balance Balance
Sept. 1, 1987 Additions Deductions Aug. 31, 1988

COLLECTIONS DUE OTHER GOVERNMENTS:
Assets:

Cash $ 28,139 458,672 461,172 25,639
Receivables 9,571 9,401 9,571 9,401
Due From Other Funds 1,177 2,917 1,177 2,917

$ 38,887 470,990 471,920 37,957

Liabilities:
Cash Overdraft 659 659
Due To Other Govemments 38,228 460,901 461,172 37,957

$ 38,887 460,901 461,831 37,957

CONTRACTOR DEPOSITS:
Assets:

Cash And Investments $ 71,898 28,049 35,757 64,190
Contractor Retainage 744,440 285,569 124,374 905,635

$ 816,338 313,618 160,131 969,825

Liabilities:
Due To Contractor $ 816,338 313,618 160,131 969,825

PAYROLL REVOLVING:
Assets:

Cash 1,471,838 32,017,339 32,814,330 674,847
Receivables 32,860 333,680 32,860 333,680
Due From Other Funds 124.494 31.655.595 31,650,250 129,839

$ 1,629,192 64,006,614 64,497,440 1,138,366
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 316,189 316,189
Vouchers Payable 582,777 30,547,656 31,130,433
Due To Other Governments 730,226 31,956,415 31,601,391 1,085,250
Due To Plan Members 367,089 313,973 53,116

$ 1,629,192 62,871,160 63,361,986 1,138,366

OUTSTANDING WARRANTS:
Assets:

Cash $ 2,797,364 270,095,853 269,252,712 3,640,505

Liabilities:
Warrants Payable $ 2,797,364 270,095,853 269,252,712 3,640,505

EARNINGS ON POOLED INVESTMENTS:
Assets:

Cash $ 1,512,160 1,681,027 1,512,160 1,681,027

Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities 281,214 303,619 281,214 303,619
Due To Other Funds 1,230,946 1,377,408 1,230,946 1,377,408

$ 1,512,160 1,681,027 1,512,160 1,681,027

(continued)
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(AGENCY FUNDS, continued) G-5

Balance Balance
Sept. 1, 1987 Deductions Aug. 31, 1988

UTILITIES AND TELEPHONE SUSPENSE:
Assets:

Cash $ 1,052 23,813,319 23,812,801 1,570
Receivables 3,415 761 3,415 761
Due From Other Funds 23,198 23,792,568 23,812,801 2,965

$ 27,665 47,606,648 47,629,017 5,296
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 26,613 312,321 335,208 3,726
Accrued Liabilities 1,052 23,478,111 23,477,593 1,570

$ 27,665 23,790,432 23,812,801 5,296

PUBLIC OFFICE BUILDING REVENUE BONDS
(STATE OF NEBRASKA, lESSEE):

Assets:
Cash And Investments 1,261,659 1,769,338 1,791,309 1,239,688
Accrued Interest 16,253 15,781 16,253 15,781
Due From Other Funds 8,132 7,561 8,132 7,561

$ 1,286,044 1,792,680 1,815,694 1,263,030
Liabilities:

Amount Held Under State Lease Agreement 1,286,044 1,784,899 1,815,694 1,255,249
Due To Other Funds 7,781 7,781

$ 1,286,044 1,792,680 1,815,694 1,263,030

UNDISTRIBUTED PROPERTY TAX:
Assets:

Cash $ 3,200,000 22,857,567 23,857,567 2,200,000

Liabilities:
Due To Other Funds $ 3,200,000 22,857,567 23,857,567 2,200,000

DEFERRED COMPENSA110N PLAN:
Assets:

Insurance Contract $ 1,860,903 437,894 540,994

Liabilities:
Due To Plan Members $ 1,860,903 437,894 540,994 1,757,803

AGENCY FUND TOTALS:

Total Assets $ 13,168,553 409,262,891 409,737,635 12,693,809

Total Liabilities $ 13,168,553 384,301,132 384,775,876 12,693,809
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

To account for fixed assets not used in proprietary fund operations or
accounted for in trust funds.
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ADDITIONS

BY SOURCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1988

H-1

General Fixed Assets August 31, 1982'"

Additions To Genera! Fixed Assets By Source --
September 1, 1982 Through August 31, 1987

General Fund Revenues
Federal Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Donations

Deletions

General Fixed Assets August 31 , 1987

Additions To General Fixed Assets By Source --
September 1, 1987 Through August 31, 1988

General Fund Revenues
Federal Funds
Capita! Projects Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Donations

Deletions

General Fixed Assets August 31,1988

$ 46,978,145

5,275,278
182,088

5,637,482
1,264,030

494,864
12,853,742

(4,547,845)

$ 55,284,042

781,406
82,030

1,511,477
201,159

1,022
2,577,094

(1,002,819)

$ 56,858,317

*The City'S first inventory was completed at August 31, 1982. General fixed
assets by source was not available for assets acquired prior to August 31, 1982.
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
Year Ended August 31, 1988

Improvements Machinery
Other Than And

Total Land Buildings Buildings Eguipment

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative $ 13,187 13,187
Executive, Including Human Rights,

Economic Development, Word
Processing, CIRC, And Admin.
Services 692,520 692,520

Financial Administration 173,700 173,700
Law 177,671 177,671
Personnel Administration 41,461 41,461
Planning And Zoning 38,522 38,522
BUildings And Plant 7,219,279 941,178 6,114,385 163,716
Urban Development 3,294,934 3,194,762 100,172

Total General Government 11,651,274 4,135,940 6,114,385 163,716 1,237,233

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police 625,331 625,331
Fire 4,058,325 463,578 1,193,055 101,883 2,299,809
Codes 224,597 224,597
Communications 170,068 170,068
Civil Defense 84,167 84,167
Transportation 1,463,071 60,066 436,677 64,202 902,126

Total Public Safety 6,625,559 523,644 1,629,732 166,085 4,306,098

STREETS AND HIGHWAYS
Street Maintenance 5,706,385 2,359,635 1,969,262 505,992 871,496

CULTURE·· RECREATION
Parks And Recreation 20,278,436 4,800,178 5,107,928 9,784,889 585,441
Libraries 8,952,252 144,554 2,176,517 140,515 6,490,666
Cornhusker Convention Center 2,871,688 446,036 2,248,715 176,937

Total Culture -- Recreation 32,102,376 5,390,768 9,533,160 9,925,404 7,253,044

ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY
Lincoln Area Agency On Aging 223,872 223,872
Job Programs 28,762 28,762

Total Economic Opportunity 252,634 252,634

HEALTH AND WELFARE
Lincoln Lancaster Co. Health 520,089 520,089

Total General Fixed Assets $ 56,858,317 12,409,987 19,246,539 10,761,197 14,440,594
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CITY OF LINCOLN, HE
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
Year Ended August 31, 1988

General General
Fixed Fixed

Assets Assets
Function And Activity Sept. 1, 1987 Additions· Deductions Aug. 31, 1988

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative $ 11,710 1,477 13,187
Executive, Including Human Rights,

Economic Development, Word
Processing, CIRC, And Admin.
Services 721,977 6,343 35,800 692,520

Financial Administration 104,472 69,852 624 173,700
Law 185,227 6,143 13,699 177,671
Personnel Administration 41,756 386 681 41,461
Planning And Zoning 36,740 6,429 4,647 38,522
Buildings And Plant 7,219,279 7,219,279
Urban Development 2,907,017 1,032,983 645,066 3,294,934

Total General Government 11,228,178 1,123,613 700,517 11,651,274

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police 615,729 28,598 18,996 625,331
Fire 3,752,382 407,667 101,724 4,058,325
Codes 212,968 16,251 4,622
Communications 169,918 150 170,068
Civil Defense 80,903 9,033 5,769 84,167
Transportation 1,393,558 75,946 6,433 1,463,071

Total Public Safety 6,225,458 537,645 137,544 6,625,559

STREETS AND H!GHWAYS
Street Maintenance 5,439,674 266,906 195 5,706,385

CULTURE -- RECREATION
Parks And Recreation 20,031,036 411,963 164,563 20,278,436
Libraries 8,806,272 145,980 8,952,252
Cornhusker Convention Center 2,871,688 2,871,688

Total Culture -- Recreation 31,708,996 557,943 164,563 32,102,376

ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY
Lincoln Area Agency On Aging 177,071 46,801 223,872
Job Programs 28,512 250 28,762

Total Economic Opportunity 205,583 47,051 252,634

HEALTH AND WELFARE
Lincoln Lancaster Co. Health 476,153 43,936 520,089

Total General Fixed Assets $ 55,284,042 2,577,094 1,002,819 56,858,317

·The figures in this column do not necessarily agree with the other financial statements for capital outlay in the governmental
funds. This is because expenditures made by some funds for building improvements are shown here under Buildings and
Plant. Also, infrastructure items are not capitalized under the City's capitalization policies.
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SCHEDULE OF
FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE 1-1

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (ALL FUNDS)
YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1988

Accrued Grantee Accrued
(Deferred) Matching (Deferred)

Grant Grant Contributions Grant

Federal Revenues Rlevenues & Misc. Revenues

Federal GrantorlPass-Through GrantorlProgram Title CFDANumber Grant Number Sept. 1, 1987 -B~_ Revenues Expenditures Aug. 31, 1988

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direct Programs:

UMTA Section 9 Capital 20.507 NE-90-0010 $ 724 181 905

UMTA Section 9 Capital, Planning 20.507 NE-90-0002 59,731 15,999 79,994 4,264

And Operating Assistance
UMTA Section 9 Capital, Planning 20.507 NE-90-XOO9 2,728 682 3,410

And Operating Assistance
UMTA Section 9 Capital, Planning 20.507 NE-90-X007 125 89,931 29,440 147,200 27,954

And Operating Assistance
UMTA Section 9 Capital, Planning 20.507 NE-90-XOO4 (4,000) 8,456 7,138 35,691 16,097

And Operating Assistance
UMTA Section 9 Capital And 20.507 NE-90-X017 1,072,293 2,999,610 4,071,903

Operating Assistance
UMTA Section 9 Capital And 20.507 NE-90-X014 4,694 1,612 8,059 1,753

Operating Assistance
UMTA Section 5 Capital Assistance 20.507 NE-05-0010 112,387 94,864 17,523

I--' UMTA Section 5 Capital Assistance 20.507 NE-05-0009 (54) 11,601 2,914 14,569
l\J UMTA Section 3 Capital Assistance 20.507 NE-03-0023 74,624 152,974 26,116 104,466
l\J

UMTA Transit Planning 20.507 NE-90-XOO7 13,624 20,630 1,752 8,758

UMTA Transit Planning 20.507 NE-90-XOO4 397 2,996 650 3,249

UMTA Transit Planning 20.507 NE-08-0029 1,604 1,604

UMTA Transit Planning 20.507 NE-08-0032 9,590 2,398 18,473 6,485

UMTA Transit Planning 20.507 NE-08-0034 167 41 2,635 2,427

UMTA Transit Planning 20.507 NE-90-XOO9 28,018 7,005 43,044 8,021

UMTA Transit Planning 20.507 NE-90-XOO2 31,800 7,950 49,745 9,995

Pass-Through State Department Of Roads:
Planning Grant 20.205 HPR-Pl1 (26) 1,976 13,174 11,198

Planning Grant 20.205 HPR-PL1(25) 6,894 42,939 6,361 42,4®

City-Wide TraffIC System 20.205 M-8031(31) 11,671 11,671

City-Wide TraflC System 20.205 M-8031 (30) 51 51

Lancaster County Rural Transit 20.205 RPT-C551 (188)-1989 2,443 4,111 1,668

Lancaster County Rural Transit 20.205 RPT-C551 (187)-1988 1,427 12,062 20,743 31,378

Lancaster County Rural Transit 20.205 RPT-C551 (186)-1987 3,508 3,508

70th & Pioneers 20.205 M-5247(1) & (4) 994 994

Cumings Street 20.205 B RO-7055(71 ) 34,170 34,170

27th St., Potter to 1-80 20.205 M-5231 (3) 9,317 40,149 49,869 19,037

16th & Holdrege Sts. 20.205 HES-5244(5) 13,481 13,481

South Street, 38th-42nd Sts. 20.205 HES-5212 (4) 105,287 100,289 340,519 335,521
Comhusker Highway, 9th-20th Sts. 20.205 Maint. Agreement #2 26,114 25,630 484

Comhusker Highway, 20th-36th Sts. 20.205 Maint. Agreement #2 71,898 100,837 (4,949) 23,990

(Continued)



(Federal Financial Assistance-Continued) 1-1

Accrued Grantee Accrued
(Deferred) Matching (Deferred)

Grant Grant Contributions Grant
Federal Revenues Revenues & Misc. Revenues

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title CFDA Number Grant Number Sept. 1, 1987 Received Revenues ExpenQLture!5 Aug. 31, 1988

State Administered Road Project 20.205 BHO-7055(70) (9,926) (3,180) (13,'106)
State Administered Road Project 20.205 BRO-7055(71 ) 10,136 3,157 13,:293
State Administered Road Project 20.205 F-BRF-6-6(102) 7,297 (7,297)
State Administered Road Project 20.205 HES-34-6(120) 1,666 52,096 5,415 55,845
State Administered Road Project 20.205 HES-5202(6) 1,977 2,547 4,!524
State Administered Road Project 20.205 HES-5227(4) 551 (439) 59 (53)
State Administered Road Project 20.205 HES-5228(3) 2,556 1,681 4,237
State Administered Road Project 20.205 HES-5244(5) 1,102 132 1,:321 87
State Administered Road Project 20.205 HES-5244(6) 561 (561)
State Administered Road Project 20.205 HPR-PL-1(P24) 136,684 5,871 142,~)55

State Administered Road Project 20.205 HPR-PL-1 (P25) 1,501,120 168,735 1,669,855
State Administered Road Project 20.205 HPR-PL-1 (P26) 163,829 165,536 329,365
State Administered Road Project 20.205 M-BRM-5231 (2) '16,897 20,864 37,'761
State Administered Road Project 20.205 M-HES-5239(3) 53 (1,368) (1,421 ) 2,842
State Administered Road Project 20.205 M-5053(1) (1,778) 1,778
State Administered Road Project 20.205 M-5202(5) 160 (722) (882)
State Administered Road Project 20.205 M-5212(4) 352,665 (100,951 ) 251,714
State Administered Road Project 20.205 M-5231 (3) 16 60,000 (6,681) 53,:::t03
State Administered Road Project 20.205 M-8031 (27) 471 471

I-' State Administered Road Project 20.205 RR-6970(5) 77 77
tv State Administered Road Project 20.205 RR-RRS-6970(7) 12,649 (83,501) 157,109 116,3,71 55,412w

State Administered Road Project 20.205 RR-6970(8) 2,674,256 369,923 3,044,179
State Administered Road Project 20.205 RR-6970(9) 22,616 1,190 23,806
State Administered Road Project 20.205 RR-6970(10) 461 2,861 3,432 110
State Administered Road Project 20.205 RRP-5210(2) 67 37,570 4,167 41,670
State Administered Road Project 20.205 RRP-5220(1 ) 67 24,983 2,768 27,684
Misc. Emergency Traffic Projects 20.205 23,982 223,428 199,446
14th &Adams - Traffic Signals 20.205 HES-5227(4) 17,657 17,657
17th & Holdrege - Traffic Signals 20.205 HES-5244(6) 27,807 36,284 36,284 27,807
Computer Room 20.205 M8031 (27) 42,565 42,565
"0" Street, 25th-63rd Sts. 20.205 HES-34-6(120) 42,889 30,000 73,268 379
RTSD 20.205 RR 6970 (7) 13,471 (6,269) 91,292 84,090

Pass-Through State Dept. Of Motor Vehicles:
Seatbelt Safety Program 20.600 88-304 32,311 32,311
Seatbelt Safety Program 20.600 87-304 2,329 9,679 6,661 (689)
Seatbelt Safety Program 20.600 86-304 (1,373) (1,373)
Seatbelt Safety Program 20.600 85-304 3,661 3,661

Total Department Of Transportation $ 572,808 6,889,259 4,664,972 11,381,3E>3 399,940

(Continued)



(Federal Financial Assistance-Continued) 1-1

Accrued Grantee Accrued
(Deferred) Matching (Deferred)

Grant Grant Contributions Grant
Federal Revenues Hevenues & Misc. Revenues

Federal GrantorlPass-Through GrantorlProgral'11Jit~ CFDANumber Grant Number Sept. 1,1987 .-!Received_ Revenues Expenditures Aug. 31, 1988

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Direct Programs:

RSVP Aging 13.633 440-8621 (05) $ 8736 11,36'1 4,951 7,576

RSVP Aging 13.633 440-8621 (06) 45,444 69,785 113,542 (1,687)

Lifetime Health 13.633 07AM0321/02 5,233 126,OO!5 122,075 1,303

Lifetime Health 13.633 07AM0321/01 5,134 5,045 (89)

Pass-Through State Department Of Institutions:
CARE 13.992 1,685 3,343 1,658

Pass-Through State Department Of Aging:
Tille IIIB 13.633 NGA-89-032 260,527 277,563 17,036

Tille IIIB 13.633 NGA-88-078 (23,442) 264,52:6 1,135,638 1,423,608

Title IIIC(1) 13.635 NGA-89-033 52,565 71,834 19,269

Title IlIC(1) 13.635 NGA-88-079 (39,:325) 252,221 348,848 640,394

Title IIIC(2) 13.635 NGA-89-034 12,633 19,232 6,599

Tille IlIC(2) 13.635 NGA-88-080 (7,435) SO,838 262,887 321,160

Pass-Through State Department Of Health:
I-' Aids- HERR 13.118 5/88 275 5,876 5,601
tv Aids- HERR 13.118 5/87 4,318 4,318
.t:>.

Aids- HERR 13.118 5/86 & Prior 1,671 1,671
Aids- PRVS 13.118 9/87 8,842 8,842
Aids- CTS 13.118 5/88 3,144 3,144
Aids- CTS 13.118 9/87 8,232 8,232

Aids- CTS 13.118 9/86 8,493 8,66,9 176
Aids - CTS 13.118 4/85 (4,345) (4,345)
Hypertension Grant 87/88 13.991 0988 BINEPRVS 31,591 30,661 (930)
Hypertension Grant 86/87 13.991 0987 B1NEPRVS 14,777 16,560 1,783
Hypertension Grant 85/86 13.991 0986 BINEPRVS (1,014) 1,014
Hypertension Grant 84/85 13.991 0985 BINEPRVS 1,024 1,02~4

Risk Reduction 13.991 09883 BINEPRVS (129) 129
Epidemiologist 88 13.994/13.991 358 358
Epidemiologist 87 13.994/13.991 12,415 4,2318 3,242 11,419
Epidemiologist 86 13.994/13.991 5,952 5,952
Epidemiologist 85 13.994/13.991 (20,788) (20,788)
Cholesterol 13.991 88-P-18-C 4,686 868 7,930 2,376
Cholesterol 13.991 88-P-17-C (612) 2,405 44 1,055 (2,006)
High Risk Newborn 13.991 88M-22 7,440 11,458 4,018
Rural Older Adults Wellness Program 13.991 88-P-17 _~!L. 6,960 9,722 244

Total Department Of Health And Human Services $ (33,655) _ 834,57,L 2,157,666 3,098,178 72,284

(Continued)
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Accrued Grantee Accrued
(Deferred) Matching (Deferred)

Grant Grant Contributions Grant
Federal Revenues Flevenues & Misc. Revenues

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title CFDA Number Grant Number Sept. 1, 1987 ..1~eceived _ Revenues Expenditures Aug. 31, 1988

Major Urban Library Resource Grant 84.039 86/87 13,729; 4,465 (9,264)
Net Lender Contract 84.167 87/88 4,891 (4,891)
Net Lender Contract 84.167 86/87 (6,993) 330 343 (6,980)
Net Lender Contract 84.167 85/86 (14,396) ------ 13,672 (724)

Total Department Of Education $ (29,22!ll. _ 18,95C~ 26,349 (21,859)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Pass-Through State Department Of Labor:

JTPA Title 1 Administration 17.250 $ 12,009 135,643 127,715 4,081
JTPA Title IIA Program 17.250 14,443 440,16:2~ 423,402 (2,317)
JTPA Title liB SUITmer SYETP 17.250 99,332 275,665 175,815 (518)
JTPA Title III Dislocated Worker 17.246 31-31-12 (805) 33,495 34,466 166

Pass-Through State Department of Aging:
JTPA For Older Workers 17.250 NGA-89-015 4,674 4,674
JTPA For Older Workers 17.250 NGA-88-011 5,213 40,075 34,862
JTPA For Older Workers 17.250 NGA-87-005 30 30
Title V (SCSEP) 17.235 NGA-89-016 7,187 13,561 6,374

..... Title V (SCSEP) 17.235 NGA-88-049 (2,4.§& _ 40,038_ 31,564 74,085
IV
0".

Total Department Of Labor $ 127,739 _ 965,10~L 38,751 8aa,580 12,460

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR
Pass-Through State Game And Parks Commission:

Park Nodes 15.919 31-00671 $ 500 500
Playground Development Antelope Park 15.919 31-00780 1,934 25,000 47,510 £4,444

Pass-Through State Historical Society:
Historical Preservation Fund 15.904 87/88 4,379 10,434 6,055
Historical Preservation Fund 15.904 86/87 3,938 _ 13,40i~ 6,969 16,438

Total U.S. Department Of Interior $ 6,372 _ 13,90~ __~_6 ,3'!!L 74,382_ 30,499

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Direct Program:

Hazardous Waste 66.418 $ 1,131 1,138 7
Pass-Through State Department Of Environmental Control:

Air Pollution 66.001 M-007056(88) 43,99:3 50,121 111,802 17,688
Air Pollution 66.001 M-007056(87) 20,783 36,15E5 490 15,863
Air Pollution 66.001 M-007056(86) (4,651 ) 2,453 7,104
Air Pollution 66.001 M-007056(85) 13,243 19,317 6,074
Air Pollution 66.001 M-007056(84) 3,714 3,714------

Total Environmental Protection Agency $ 34,220 _ 81,28~~ 76,095 140,850 17,688

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title
Federoal

CFDA Number Grant Number

Accrued
(Deferred)

Grant
Revenues

Sept. 1,1987

Grant
Revenues
Received

Grantee
Matching

Contributions
& Misc.

Revenues Expenditures

Accrued
(Deferred)

Grant
Revenues

Aug. 31. 1988

fEMA
Pass-Through State Civil Defense:

Emergency Management Assistance
Maintenance And Service

Total FEMA

u.s. DEPARTMENT Of JUSTICE
Pass-Through State Com. On Law Enforcement And Criminal Justice:

Linc.lLanc. Co. Coop. Street Drug Dealer Apprehension Program
Technical White Collar Crime Investigations
Victim Witness Unit

Total Department of Justice

83.516
83.504

16.579
16.573
16.575

EMK-88-K-Q146
EMK-88-K-Q146

87-DA-317
85-SA-100
86-213

$ 22,196 49,178 53,897 107,793
1,139 __2.279

22,196 _ 49,178_ 55,036 __1_10,072

$ 42.935 40.136 105.013
(2,774) 4,949 '7.723

24.172 10,532 ___41,235

$ (2:l74L _ 72,056. 50.668 ---.1§;3.971

26,914
1.140

28.054

21,942

6,531

28,473

I-'
!\.)

-....J

141 141
86

___-:.1.1..:.,1..:::..;00 _~

OTHER fEDERAL ASSISTANCE
Pass-Through State Department Of Aging:

USDA Cash In Lieu of Commodities
Title IV-A - Training NDOAlAAA
Title IV-A - Seminar Sept. 15
Title IV-A - Educational Materials
Title IV-A - 1988 Governors Conference
Title IV-A - 1987 Governors Conference
Title IV-A - Nurse Case Management
CARE Management Training

$ 40,423 174,244
430

22
500

1~I,386

430
22

500
325

86

14.565

325

14,890

521,643

149,749

19,063,3837.331,31611,757,031546,607'

$ 41,664 '176,523

$

Total Other Federal Assistance

Total Federal Assistance

For purposes of this schedule expenditures are on a GMP basis while revenues are on a cash basis.
The City has 3 Section 108 loans. with outstanding principal balances at August 31, 1988 of $90,000. $40.000 and $810.000, respectively. These loans. through the Community Development Block Grant,
are repaid by reductions in subsequent years entitlements equal to the necessary prir'ICipal and interest payments. Loans 2 and 3 have drawdowns available at August 31 , 1988 of $406,000 and $1,190,000,
respectively.
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CITY OF LINCOLN,
GENERAL INFORMATION

Table 1
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION1

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS

Streets Health
Fiscal2 General Public And Culture- Economic And Debrt
~ Goyernment ~ Hjghways Recreation Opportunity ~ Sanitation3

~ ~

1988 $ 11,227,562 21,217,662 5,987,512 8,054,651 6,201,422 3,616,964 6,809,178 63,114,951
1987 10,511,274 20,041,053 5,455,931 7,842,716 5,319,400 3,504,832 15,969,066 68,644,272
1986 10,868,367 19,493,668 5,520,065 7,576,486 5,033,019 3,444,554 525,967 2,077,869 54,539,995
1985 11,603,702 17,940,665 5,317,458 7,234,289 5,157,817 3,112,818 543,104 6,158,216 57,068,069
1984 11,193,643 17,595,508 6,114,230 7,146,990 6,165,295 2,934,664 381,221 2,208,098 53,739,649
1983 9,960,617 18,368,526 5,211,782 6,857,185 5,345,982 2,839,462 699,871 1,823,062 51,106,487
1982 8,331,599 16,547,254 5,046,850 6,247,068 5,441,512 2,383,232 497,522 1,305,398 45,800,435
1981 7,789,748 15,648,019 3,732,062 6,198,121 5,981,318 2,486,461 600,378 1,300,819 43,736,926

1Includes General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds.
2General GO'v-emment ExpenditlJreS by function for years prior to 1981 is not available.
3At August 1, 1986 Sanitary Landfill became an Enterprise Fund. The figure for 1986 includes only eleven months of expenditures.
For years after 1986, all sanitation expenditures are included with the Enterprise Funds.

4The figures for 1988 include Spjecial Assessment amounts of $81,084 in General Government and $3,005,494 in Debt Service
reported as General Governmental Expenditures for the first time due to Statement 6 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board.

Table 2
GENERAL REVENUES BY SOURCE1

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS

Permits
Fiscal2 Inter- And Reimbursement Court Recreation
~ ~3 Goyernmental ~ For Services ~ Receipts ~3 Qtbw: ~

1988 $ 47,992,603 16,357,404 1,603,158 1,048,138 116,859 590,809 3,588,413 2,631,228 73,928,612
1987 43,360,446 15,733,000 1,496,422 1,270,069 119,721 526,598 1,657,124 2,386,740 66,550,120
1986 39,051,866 16,577,869 1,375,019 950,162 125,824 498,394 1,898,364 2,558,538 63,036,036
1985 37,676,840 16,501,967 1,083,962 850,177 560,695 456,720 1,970,901 2,545,547 61,646,809
1984 36,866,028 18,575,500 1,026,175 734,807 757,051 490,091 2,078,631 2,909,561 63,437,844
1983 34,928,715 17,073,128 882,565 744,948 788,002 489,893 1,915,578 1,629,508 58,452,337
1982 32,385,108 16,343,095 672,914 773,486 563,990 419,847 2,547,362 1,638,171 55,343,973
1981 27,815,767 17,084,833 752,488 1,219,596 406,099 380,631 1,731,412 1,335,369 50,726,195

1Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.
2Revenues by source for years prior to 1981 is not available.
3General Revenues - Taxes includes $1,356,218 of Special Assessments in 1988 and interest includes $1,079,095 of Special

Assessment Interest in 1988 as a result of implementation of Statement 6 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Table 3

PROPERTY TAX LEVIED AND COLLECTED
LAST TEN YEARS

The fiscal year of the City begins September 1 and ends August 31. Taxes are levied in September. First installments of real estate
taxes are delinquent the following April 1, second installments delinquent August 1; personal property taxes are delinquent December 1
and July 1. Delinquent taxes bear 14 percent interest. The figures below include interest and penalties. The full amount of the taxes
levied for 1977 and prior has been collected. The figures below do not include motor vehicle in lieu of ad valorem taxes.

Collected As Of August 31 Accumulated Collections
After Lew As Of August 31.1988

Tax year Taxes Levied A.i:J:lmmt ~ Ao:1mmt ~

1987 $ 18,547,425 $ 17,483,064 94.26 0/0 $ 17,483,064 94.26 0/0
1986 18,634,563 17,563,423 94.25 18,338,152 98.41
1985 14,820,947 13,930,925 93.99 14,770,483 99.66
1984 21,679,327 20,063,968 92.55 21,511,976 99.23
1983 21,154,814 19,448,543 91.93 21,288,960 100.63
1982 20,019,695 18,429,271 92.06 20,229,509 101.05
1981 18,851,556 17,479,454 92.72 18,974,944 100.65
1980 17,228,254 16,145,975 93.72 17,492,236 101.53

*1979 14,465,162 13,943,456 96.39 14,772,159 102.12
1978 13,070,258 12,455,113 95.29 13,103,634 100.26

*Tax levy reduced $199,775 during year by County Board of Equalization.
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Financial Statistics - Continued

Table 4
TAXABLE ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED

ACTUAL VALUATION
LAST TEN YEARS'

Real Estate All Other Motor Vehicle

Assessed
Value

Ratio Of
Totals Total Assessed

Estimated To Total
Actual Estimated
Value Actual Value

Estimated
Actual
Value

Assessed
Value

Estimated
Actual
Value

Assessed
Value

Estimated
Actual
Value

Assessed
ValueYear

1988
1987
1986
1985
1984
1983
1982
1981
1980
1979

$ 3,609,376,307 3,609,376,307 522,747,416 522,747,416 416,921,473 416,921,473 4,549,045,196 4,549,045,196 100 %
3,526,918,806 3,526,918,806 499,004,211 499,004,211 397,669,695 397,669,695 4,423,592,712 4,423,592,712 100
3,314,107,283 3,314,107,283 485,088,431 485,088,431 370,099,785 370,099,785 4,169,295,499 4,169,295,499 100
3,258,644,926 3,258,644,926 408,998,541 408,998,541 341,007,685 341,007,685 4,008,651,152 4,008,651,152 100
2,984,694,981 2,984,694,981 443,408,593 443,408,593 323,626,975 323,626,975 3,751,730,549 3,751,730,549 100
2,934,191,285 2,934,191,285 388.380.465 388,380.465 ,]7"'l Af't4:l...,nJ'\ 273,406,700 3,595.978,450 3,595,978,450 100""u,,,",,VU,I'V'\J

2,584,857,645 2,584,857,645 371,824,615 371 ,824,615 255,350,485 255,350,485 3,212,032,745 3,212,032,745 100
2,548,392,720 2,548 ,392,720 334,108,160 334,108,160 222,107,655 222,107,655 3,104,608,535 3,104,608,535 100

883,163,211 2,523,323,460 113,842,179 325,263,369 71,910,030 205,457,229 1,068,915,420 3,054,044,058 35
865,159,960 2,47~ ,885,600 100,909,875 288,313,929 69,331,920 198,091,200 1,035,401,755 2,958,290,729 35

,All property up to and inclusive of 1980 was assessed at 35% of actual value; in 1981, assessment was at 100% of actual.

Table 5

TOTAL PROPERTY TAX LEVIES
ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN YEARS'

1Wt ~ .1W. ~ Naa ~ ~ ~ 1.aaZ .l.aaa

City of Lincoln 15.1800 17.2800 0.6540 0.6771 0.6367 0.6324 0.4041 0.4903 0.4607 0.4801
School District No.1 36.1040 35.7890 1.3186 1.3435 1.3234 1.4034 1.4069 1.4075 1.4038 1.4544
Airport Authority 0.6510 0.4260 0.0132 0.0128 0.0114 0.0109 0.0103 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
Lancaster County 8.5930 9.2300 0.3387 0.3385 0.3134 0.2928 0.2928 0.3353 0.3353 0.3441
Educational Servioo Unit i1118 0.2100 0.2170 0.0072 0.0076 0.0073 0.0075 0.0079 0.0076 0.0080 0.0080
Community Technical College 1.6800 1.6000 0.0617 0.0660 0.0660 0.0660 0.0660 0.0690 0.0690 0.0855
Lower Platte South Natural Resouroos District 1.0000 0.6200 0.0227 0.0233 0.0227 0.0231 0.0319 0.0311 0.0314 0.0405
Railroad Transportation Safety Dist. 0.4480 0.4540 0.0165 0.0171 0.0165 0.0167 0.Q176 0.0174 0.0164 0.0160
Agricultural Society of Lancaster County 0.3220 0.0011 0.0046 0.0014 0.0011 0.0013 0.0011 0.0010 0.0010

TOTAL 63:8660 65.9380 2.4337 2.4905 2.3988 2.4539 2.2388 2.3593 2.3256 2.4296

,For years 1980 and prior years, the assessment rate was 35% of actual value and the levy expressed in mills (tax per $1,000 of
assessed value). Beginning in 1981, the assessment rate is 100% of market and the levy is expressed as the tax per $100 of esti­
mated market value.

Table 6
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN YEARS'

Year
Ended

August 31

Special Assessment
Collections

Including Interest

1988
1987
1986
1985
1984
1983
1982
1981
1980
1979

$3,565,274
4,759,761
5,522,732
3,992,243
4,416,000
3,402,508
2,853,068
3,075,172
3,127,726
3,539,695

'Special assessment collections are not tracked by levy year, therefore the portion of collections during any year which apply to any
particular levy cannot be determined.
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Financial Statistics - Continued

CITY SALES TAX INFORMATION

The City had a one percent (1 %) sales and use tax through June 30, 1985. Effective July 1, 1985 the sales and use tax
was raised to one and one half percent (1.5%). These taxes are administered and collected for the City by the State of
Nebraska. The State receives three percent (3%) for their service. The City has had a sales tax since 1969.

SALES AND USE TAX COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN YEARS

Year Ended

Table 7

1988
1987
1986
1985
1984
1983
1982
1981
1980
1979

$21,592,027
19,381,135
17,810,917
11,773,664
11,263,100
11.111,390
10,266,167
9,992,849
9,224,115
8,604,921

Table 8

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT IN RELATION TO PER CAPITA
TOTAL ASSESSED VALUATION, TRUE VALUE OF REAL ESTATE

AND TO PER CAPITA INCOME
LAST TEN YEARS

Ratio Of
Net Ratio Of Assessed Net Debt

General General Net Assessed Net Debt Valuation To Estimated
Obligation Obligation G.O. Bonded Valuation To Assessed Of Taxable Valuation

Bonded Sinking Bonded Debt Per Real And Valuation Real Of Taxable

Yw Debt Funds Debt population' Capita Personal Beal & personal Property Real property

1988 $ 44,175,000 $ 12,268,405 $ 31,906,595 185,620 $ 171.89 $ 4,549,045,196 0.70 % $ 3,609,376,307 0.88 %
1987 47,775,000 6,169,064 41,605,936 184,500 225.50 4,423,592,712 0.94 3,526,918,806 1.18
1986 51,280,000 6,385,834 44,894,166 184,500 243.33 4,188,657,680 LO? 3,314,107,283 .,,'"I.vv

1985 35,590,000 5,327,394 30,262,606 181,500 166.73 4,008,651,152 0.75 3,258,644,926 0.93
1984 38,595,000 5,363,715 33,231,285 180,200 184.41 3,751,730,549 0.89 2,984,694,981 1.11
1983 38,700,000 5,349,362 33,350,638 175,000 190.58 3,595,978,450 0.93 2,934,191,285 1.14
1982 37,216,000 5,576,237 31,639,763 175,000 180.80 3,212,032,745 0.99 2,584,857,645 1.22
1981 35,632,000 3,873,157 31,758,843 174,000 182.52 3,104,608,535 1.02 2,548,392,720 1.25
1980 34,082,000 4,225,000 29,857,000 172,000 173.59 1,068,915,420 2.79 2,523,323,460 1.18
1979 24,405,000 3,043,186 21,361,814 170,000 125.66 1,035,401,755 2.06 2,471,885,600 0.86

'Source: Lincoln-Lancaster Planning Department.

For years 1980 and prior, assessed valuation was 35% of actual; beginning in 1981, assessed valuation is 100% of actual.

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
AUGUST 31, 1988

Table 9

City
School District #1
Airport Authority'
Lancaster County
Southeast Community College

Total

Net Debt
Outstanding

$31,906,595
None

1,565,000
None
None

$33,471,595

Percentage
Applicable

To The City

100.0%

100.0

Direct And
Overlapping

Debt

$31,906,595
None

1,565,000
None
None

$33,471 ,595

, Does not include Special Obligation Bonds of $771,819 payable from lease rentals.
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Table 10

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR
GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS

10.77°~
23.25
3.81

10.58
4.11
3.57
2.85
2.97

Ratio Of
Debt Service

To Total
General

Expenditures

Total Total
Fiscal 2

Interest 4
Debt General

Year Principal ~ Expenditures 1

19886 $ 3,600,000 3,199,184 6,799,184 63,114,951
1987 13,480,000 2,438,712 15,918,712 5 68,478,194
1986 1,050,000 1,027,119 2,077,119 54,539,995
1985 4,870,000 3 1,165,805 6,035,805 57,068,069
1984 1,070,000 1,138,098 2,208,098 53,739,649
1983 895,000 928,062 1,823,062 51,106,487
1982 795,000 510,398 1,305,398 45,800,435
1981 777,000 523,819 i ')1"\1"\ 01,.., 43,736,926't~VtOI'::J

~Includes: General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds.
Information for years prior to 1981 is not available.

31ncludes $3,730,000 of refunded Cornhusker Square Redevelopment Project NO.1 Tax Allocation Bonds,
Series 1982.

4Does not include fiscal charges.
51ncludes $12,000,000 bond defeasance.
61988 includes Special Assessment Bonds for the first time due to implementation of Statement 6 of the Governmental Accounting

Standards Board.
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DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN YEARS

Per Capita School Unemployment

~ population Income3 Eorollment4 RateS

1988 185,620 1 $ 26,567 2.3%
1987 184,500 1 25,982 3.4
1986 184,500 1 13,731 25,462 2.7
1985 181,500 1 13,113 25,209 3.2
1984 180,200 1 12,333 24,874 2.5
1983 175,000 1 11,745 24,675 3.3
1982 175,001 1 11,204 25,017 5.9
1981 174,000 1 10,776 25,489 An"t.v

1980 171,932 2 9,810 25,758 3.3
1979 170,000 1 9,282 26,215 2.7

Sources:
1Lincoln/Lancaster Planning Department
21980 Census
3University of Nebraska Bureau of Business Research. Per Capita Income for 1987

and 1988 is unavailable.
4Lincoln Public Schools
5State of Nebraska, Department of Labor

Median age from 1980 census was 27.2. Education level in years of formal
schooling from 1980 census was 12.9 years.

PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS
LAST TEN YEARS

Table 12

Table 13

Commercial2

Construction
Fiscal Number
Year Of permits Y.al.wl

Residential2

Construction
Number

Ofpermjts ~

Bank3

Deposits
In Millions

Prope;rty Value1~ .4. I

Commercial Heslqentlal

1988 863 $ 59,063,356 1,759 $ 78,047,673 1,670.8 977,003,150 2,632,373,157 $ 3,609,376,307
1987 822 64,774,857 1,624 69,088,218 1,632.6 943,517,080 2,583,401,726 3,526,918,806
1986 832 57,681,113 1,759 68,144,887 1,592.8 789,751,765 2,524,355,518 3,314,107,283
1985 837 69,232,353 1,721 58,636,876 1,228.0 776,600,000 2,482,044,926 3,258,644,926
1984 720 56,310,073 1,734 56,474,850 1,244.0 664,955,718 2,319,739,263 2,984,694,981
1983 706 62,675,694 1,534 37,876,203 1,098.0 653,704,075 2,280,487,210 2,934,191,285
1982 625 45,746,743 1,202 13,653,142 1,025.1 629,089,057 1,955,768,588 2,584,857,645
1981 650 31,927,896 1,898 37,941,593 927.5 620,214,416 1,928,178,304 2,548,392,720
1980 552 37,932,834 2,088 38,862,945 999.6 2,523,323,460
1979 638 49,802,736 2,241 38,992,754 882.4 2,471,885,600

1The breakdown of property value between Commercial and Residential is not available for years 1980 and prior.

Sources:
2City of Lincoln, Department of Buildings and Safety
3Lincoln Chamber of Commerce
4Lancaster County Assessor
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Table 14

TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS

Listed below are the ten largest taxpayers in the City of Lincoln as reported the County Assessor.
These taxpayers each pay less than five percent of the total taxes levied.

Taxpayers Type Of Business

1988

Valuations

Percentage
Of Total

Assessed
Valuation

Lincoln Telephone & Telegraph
Ameritas Financial Services
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co.
Burlington Northern, Inc.
Cornhusker Land Company
Jacobs, Visconsi & Jacobs Co.
National Bank of Commerce
FirsTier
Otto Gaspar
Minnegasco

Telecommunications
Insurance
Manufacturing
Railroad
Developers
Shopping Center
Banking
Banking
Real Estate
Natural Gas

$ 114,523,229
36,728,041
32,372,913
30,145,354
25,367,149
25,149,599
24,209,264
21,444,142
16,576,582
15.041 703

$ 341,557,976

2.52%
.81
.71
.66
.56
.56
.53
.47
.36
~
7.510/0

Table 15

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
AUGUST 31, 1988

Number of Stations: 1
Number of Police 232

Fire Protection
Number of -"::1I'~11', ... , ... t"' 11
Number of 234

Education
Public Schools:

Senior High Schools: 4
Junior High Schools: 9
Elementary Schools: 36
Number of Students: 26,567

Private and Parochial Schools:
Number of Schools: 21
Number of Students: 4,315

Sanitary Sewer
Number of Consumers: 54,987
Miles: 709

Water Department
Number of Consumers: 55,647
Average Daily Consumption: 35,723,000

gallons
Miles of Water Mains: 878 miles

1869
Mayor-Council, Home

Park _U"·T<:>nn-

acres
Libraries: 7
Recreation Centers: 5
'...:\AI'In"lITlII'''Ilt"'1 Pools (Public): 9
Golf Courses (Public): 4

Date of
Form of

Rule Charter
Area: 60.89 miles
Lane Miles of -..:t'''l'~~t'.... 1,772 miles
Number of Street 16,933
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Certified PUblic Accoontants

PM! Mlrwlck Mlm I: Co.
1600 FlrsTler Bank Building

Lincoln, NE 58508

COMBINED AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
AT THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENT LEVEL

AND THE FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM LEVEL

Honorable ~J1ayor and
Members of the City Council of the

City of Lincoln, Nebraska:

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Lincoln,
Nebraska, for the year ended August 31, 1988, and have issued our report thereon
dated January 27, 1989. These general purpose financial statements are the
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these general purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
and the standards for financial audits contained in the Standards for Audit of
Governmental Organizations. Proarams. Activities. and Functions, issued by the U. S.
General Accounting Office; the Single Audit Act of 1984; and the provisions OMB
Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Goyernments. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether
management has complied with laws and regulations and has established and
maintained a system of internal controls. An audit in accordance with those standards
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the general purpose financial statements and compliance with laws and regulations.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The management of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska is also responsible for the City'S
compliance with laws and regulations. In connection with the audit referred to above,
we selected and tested transactions and records from each major Federal financial
assistance program and certain nonmajor Federal financial assistance programs. The
purpose of our testing of transactions and records from those Federal financial
assistance programs was obtain reasonable assurance that the City ncoln,
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Nebraska, had, in all material respects,administered its major programs and executed
the tested nonmajor program transactions in compliance with those laws and
regulations for which noncompliance could have a material effect on the allowability of
program expenditures. Such laws and regulations include those pertaining Federal
financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements.

In our opinion, the City of Lincoln, Nebraska, administered each of its major Federal
financial assistance programs in compliance, in all material respects, with those laws
and regulations for which noncompliance could have a material effect on the
allowability of program expenditures for the year ended August 31, 1988.

Our testing of transactions and records selected from major Federal financial
assistance programs disciosed instances of noncompliance with certain laws and
regulations.

All instances of noncompliance that we found, and the programs to which they relate,
are identified in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the
ultimate resolution of which cannot presently be determined. Accordingly, no
provision for any liability that may result upon resolution has been made to the Federal
financial assistance programs to which they relate. We do not believe these instances
of noncompliance could have a material effect on the allowability of program
expenditures.

The results of our testing of transactions and records selected from nonmajor Federal
financial assistance programs indicate that, for the transactions and records tested, the
City of Lincoln, Nebraska, complied with the laws and regulations referred to in the
third paragraph of our report. Our testing was more limited than would be necessary
to express an opinion on whether the City of Lincoln, Nebraska, administered those
programs in compliance, in all material respects, with those laws and regulations for
which noncompliance could have a material effect on the allowability of program
expenditures. \\lith respect to the transactions and records that were not tested by us,
nothing came to our attention to indicate that the City of Lincoln, Nebraska, had not
complied with laws and regulations other than those laws and regulations for which
we noted violations in our testing referred to above.

Lincoln, Nebraska
January 1989

139



Certified Public Accountants

PNt MI!'Wlck Mam &: Co.

1600 FlrsTler Bank Building

Lincoln, NE 68!08

CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA

Schedule Findings and Questioned Costs

,1988

Program

Urban Mass Transit
Authority (UMTA)

Findings/Noncompliance

Of the 19 transactions tested for
compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, one exception was noted.
The City did not comply with UMTA
Regulation C501 0.1 A 9a(3), requiring
deposits to a self-insurance fund to be
reasonable and actuarially sound. The
amount charged to the fund appears
reasonable; however, no actuarial
valuation was performed to support the
amount charged to the Lincoln
Transportation System for Fiscal Year
1988. An actuarial evaluation has been

Questioned Costs

received by the City as of the date of
this report, which would tend to support
the amounts charged to the fund. $263,242
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PHtMlrwlck 141m & Ce.
1600 FlrsTler BII"IK Building

Lincoln, NE 68508
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reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that resource use is consistent with
laws, regulations and policies; resources are safeguarded against waste,
loss and misuse; th transactions are executed in accordance with
management's authorization; and that data are obtained, recorded and
maintained properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and. the
preparation of Federal reports in accordance with Federal requirements.

Because of inherent limitations in any system of internal accounting and
administrative controls used in administering Federal financial assistance
programs, errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected.
Also, projection of any evaluation of the systems to future periods is subject to
the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the procedures may
deteriorate.

For purposes of this report, we have classified the significant internal
accounting and administrative controls in the following categories:

Accounting Controls

* Cash disbursements
* Cash receipts
* Payroll

Administrative Controls Used in Administering
Major Federal Financial Assistance Programs

'" Political activity
11 Federal financial reports
11 Civil rights
1< Cash management
'" Davis-Bacon Act compliance
* Relocation assistance and real property acquisition
'" Monitoring of subrecipients
11 Types of services
11 Eligibility
* Matching level of effort
* Management of certain property and equipment

Our study and evaluation included all of the applicable control categories
listed above.

During the year ended August 31, 1988, the City of Lincoln, Nebraska,
expended 87% of its Federal financial assistance under major Federal
financial assistance programs. With respect to internal control systems used
in administering major Federal financial assistance programs, our study and
evaluation included considering the types of errors and irregularities that
could occur, determining the internal control procedures that should prevent
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